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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is
a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.
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Mr. Wang Xiaoqi
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Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy (Chairman)
Dr. Wong Wing Lit

Mr. Ngan Yu Loong

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

2 YUNBO DIGITAL SYNERGY GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

HITES
TRBRE(R=F—NF-A-HET)
FEERLLE
AR A
BEZRE(R-_F—AF/\HA=HRE)
BERRBT(R=—F—AFNA=HEEL)

FHTES

BAFHTES
Azt
R
BRI
A s

NCIEE

RES K

BENEER R
RREZERAZA

EEX(E
yi2is3e Fitas

REAXR
FEER L
Vi3 eyt

EREES
BMBEERLE(EZE)
FERAB L
BRAUE L
TEELE

FMZzES
Az (ER%)
BT

B RESEE

A A



NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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Executive Director’s Statement

AT A g

The fiscal year ended 31 March 2016 marks another year under
which the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
continues to rebuild its business. After having taken over the helm
at China Mobile Payment Technology Group Company Limited's
(P B X R & E AR A ) (“China Mobile Payment”), the
Company managed to increase total invoiced turnover of China Mobile
Payment by approximately 21.32% year-on-year when compared
with its results for the corresponding period last year. China Mobile
Payment is principally engaged in the trading of residential gateway
products, namely, routers, Gigabit-Passive Optical Network (“G-PON")
equipment and Ethernet-Passive Optical Network (“E-PON")
equipment, as well as providing IT network consultation services.
Overall, China Mobile Payment's full year operating results were at
best, lackluster. It was however deemed acceptable in light of the
increased competition and unprecedented challenges which have
occurred in 2015. Moving ahead in 2016/2017, management will
continue to work with China Mobile Payment to improve its operating
performance by better managing its operating expenses.

The acquisition was in line with management’s existing strategy of
building a trading business within the telecommunications industry
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") to provide the Group with
a stable stream of recurring income. When management steered
the Company to focus on the telecommunications industry in the
PRC market, we were confident that we would be able to capture
new opportunities with strong growth potential and develop them
into new growth drivers for the Group. One idea was to create
online platforms for the distribution of mobile application products
and value-added services. We believed that we can leverage off of
our strengths in business and product development to set up joint
ventures with multinational companies to introduce and procure
mobile application products and services. With this mindset, we had
aligned ourselves with a number of the PRC's large enterprises in the
telecommunications and multimedia industry. We executed strategic
link-up agreements whereby the parties concerned in each of the
agreements would work together to explore, formulate, and develop
new businesses for our mutual benefit.
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We had a relatively good start. However, the tailwinds and negative
effects of global economic conditions continued to have a strong and
adverse impact on the overall business and operating environment in
the PRC. In general, sentiments and momentum remained positive,
but slower macro-economic growth for the PRC market is inevitably
expected. Moreover, greater and more complex competition have
made the telecommunications industry significantly more challenging.
To our detriment, over the course of time, many of our existing
business partners have either decided or started to examine or re-
formulate existing business goals and objectives. They began to adopt
or have adopted different implementation approaches or strategies.
In some cases, some of our business partners have even decided to
temporarily or permanently shelved their plans.

For instance, in the area of software development, in 2012, the
Company's joint cooperation with Chinasoft International Limited
(= %= B R A 7)) (stock code: 354) (“ChinaSoft") for the
wireless city project (£ 45 ¥ ™ IH B) (“"Wireless City Project”) of
China Mobile Limited (stock code: 941) (“China Mobile") came to
a halt when China Mobile decided that planning, development and
implementation of the Wireless City Project at the group/country
level may have been too ambitious. They have ultimately decided
that the network infrastructure platform in each province should be
built individually. As such, the responsibility and opportunity of this
task were delegated to their individual provincial subsidiaries. In the
aftermath, the Company felt it would be too onerous to work with
so many subsidiaries of China Mobile as we are not set up with
the necessary human resources. The results were similar for China
Mobile's project to offer payment services through their Fetion (7% {5)
platform (“Fetion”).

In 2015, we were fortunate enough to be able to move on and work
directly with /2 Bl #% &) (X #Il ) & BB 2 &l (China Mobile (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*) (“China Mobile Shenzhen") to assist them with
developing and constructing a unified payment system platform as
well as a monitoring and management system. As of date, the initial
phase of the unified payment system platform has been built. While
the monitoring and management system is still under construction,
phase | & Il have also been completed. Once completed and the
unified payment system platform is successfully implemented, we
believe we may be able to replicate this model and promote it to other
units and/or subsidiaries of China Mobile. Moreover, it is envisioned
that we can induce large enterprises and multinational companies
such as China Telecommunications Corporation (B ES5£E A 7))'s
now developing points of sale (“POS") terminal payment network, to
join in developing and promoting the widespread use of this platform.
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Executive Director’s Statement
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A bright spot for the Group is the agency framework which we
entered into with Aspire Information Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(REEERMILR)ERAT) (“Aspire”) in 2014. The Company and
Aspire remain highly committed to work together in a manner that is
mutually beneficial to both parties. We continue to be in close contact
with Aspire with an ongoing dialogue on developing a proposed form
of joint cooperation. Management is confident that these discussions
will come to fruition in the near term.

In the area of e-commerce, under which PetroChina Company Limited
(B A B KRARA DB BR A F) (Stock Code: 857) (“PetroChina”)
had decided not to proceed with the development of an online/offline
payment service network. In 2015, the Company is now working
with various parties including X EEFTEHE AR QA 7 L&D A A
(Shanghai China Telecom Bestpay E-commerce Ltd.*) (“Shanghai
CT E-commerce”) on the development and construction of the
e-commerce network platform of payment clearing and POS terminals
installation and its promotion to enhance products competitiveness
and enrichment of services to customers. As of 31 May 2016, the
Company has already completed the installation of over 120 POS
terminals in certain retail locations under one network.

Shanghai CT E-commerce, through their Bestpay (2 ) (“Bestpay”)
platform, has also committed to provide clearing services for non-cash
payments under this new platform currently under development. Over
the course of time as the project develops and matures, we strongly
believe that this project will lead to other business opportunities for
the Group to participate in, such as additional installation of POS
terminals in other retail locations within one network in the PRC,
revenue sharing arrangement, and technical advisory services, among
others. From management'’s perspective, the opportunity at hand is
quite promising and has great potential.
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In the area of multimedia, our strategic cooperation link-up with BesTV
came to a halt when BesTV New Media Co., Ltd. (“BesTV") and their
parent, Radio and Television Shanghai and Shanghai Media Group
("RTSSM") and its shares are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600637), both underwent a senior management re-
shuffle. In addition, BesTV was merged with the Shanghai Oriental
Pearl (Group) Co.,Ltd (“Shanghai Oriental Pearl Group”) in 2015, and
then renamed as Shanghai Oriental Pearl Media Co.,Ltd (“Shanghai
Oriental Pearl”). Moreover, the PRC law pertaining to the operation of
internet protocol television (“IPTV") network services inter-provincially
changed, making it very difficult for the Company to further pursue any
business opportunities with Shanghai Oriental Pearl. The Company has
decided to re-visit this opportunity at a later time when circumstances
are more conducive for a mutually beneficial cooperation.

Additionally, in 2014 the Company, the China National Travel Service
(HK) Group Corporation (7 B4 % 9 jik & ® 2 7)) (“CTS Group”) and
China Telecommunications Corporation have entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement. The parties agreed to cooperate in tourism,
hotels, ticketing, mobile payment and other areas within the business
scope of the CTS Group. After some initial discussions on our further
cooperation via the CTS Group's Mangocity network, for one reason or
another, the CTS Group had decided not to proceed. Since then there
has been no further discussion.

The Company'’s strategic cooperation with China Vanguard Corporate
Management Limited (R R EEIEBR A E]) (“"CVCM") also went
afoul after the Ministry of Finance (FF % A R FANEEF B 3E), Ministry of
Public Security (A R HEFIEIAZE) and six other ministries of the
PRC, on 3 April 2015, in a joint statement announced to reconfirm that
internet lottery sales is strictly prohibited without prior written approval
from the relevant authorities. Since then the Company has halted all
discussions in relation to this commercial opportunity.
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Executive Director’s Statement
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The Group's system integration services and other value-added
technical consultation services and hardware-related business in
Hong Kong continue to be principally facilitated by Norray Professional
Computer Limited (“Norray”),
subsidiary of the Company. During the year, Norray had generated
revenues of approximately HK$10,366,000 and incurred loss from
operations of approximately HK$882,000. Given the size of their
operations, continuing loss, and the non-core nature of their business,

an indirect non wholly-owned

the Company has been contemplating disposing the Group's entire
shareholding interest in Norray at an appropriate time.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all members of the Board, staff and those
who have supported us for their dedication and contribution to the
Group. We will continue to put our best efforts to provide a better
return to our shareholders.

Yau Hoi Kin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016

* for identification only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had recorded revenue
of approximately HK$326,982,000, representing an increase of
approximately 100% when compared with its results for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The significant increase in revenue was
principally attributed to the Group having consolidated the full year
operating performance of China Mobile Payment, as compared with
only for the period commencing from 23 December 2014 to 31 March
2015 for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2015. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company for the year was approximately HK$4,253,000
as compared to a loss of approximately HK$2,819,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

China Mobile Payment and its major operating subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading of residential gateway products,
namely, routers, G-PON equipment and E-PON equipment, as well as
providing IT network consultation services. China Mobile Payment's
major customer is China Telecom Corporation Limited (FEE MDA
R A 7)) (“China Telecom”). The Company, through its indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary, Able Bloom Technology Limited, on 23 December
2014 acquired the entire equity interest of China Mobile Payment held
by Mr. Chan Foo Wing, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
for a consideration of HK$3 million which was settled by way of cash
funded through internal resources.

The acquisition was in line with management’s existing strategy of
building a trading business within the telecommunications industry
in the PRC to provide the Group with a stable stream of recurring
income. The Company had commenced the trading of hi-tech
hardware and equipment in the fourth quarter of 2012. Albeit being a
late comer, initially we were confident that it was possible to create
and build our own trading business from scratch. However, market
changed when we realized how difficult it is to receive an invitation
from any of the PRC's third largest telecommunication operators to
submit bids for supply contracts. This is because of their prevailing
purchasing policy to centralize all major equipment or material
purchases, and the fact that, all of them already have their own
approved list of vendors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Such vendors were historically chosen and are likely to be predicated
on their attributes of competency, capability, level of performance
quality and financial assurance, among others. Furthermore, it
became increasingly the norm for the industry that only companies
possessing the relevant prerequisites and proven track records are
invited to submit bids. With hindsight, the management had ultimately
decided that in order to achieve this objective, it was clearly more cost
effective and time efficient to simply acquire an experienced company
who has already been operating within the industry for many years.

During the year, the market was crowded with a significant increase
in E-PON equipment and G-PON equipment suppliers which increased
competition. China Mobile Payment had been principally engaged
in the trading of E-PON equipment and G-PON equipment. The
number of E-PON equipment being traded and invoiced by the China
Mobile Payment had only marginally increased year-on-year, but total
volume of sales had fallen by more than 20.58% with the average
price of each E-PON equipment unit also proportionately falling by
approximately 20.76%. Likewise, although we managed to increase
the number of G-PON equipment being traded and invoiced by more
than 256%, the average price for each G-PON equipment unit had
fallen by approximately 23.91%, similar to the fall of the unit price of
E-PON equipment.

After having taken over the helm at China Mobile Payment, the
Company managed to total invoiced turnover of China Mobile Payment
by approximately 21.32% year-on-year when compared with its results
during the corresponding period last year. However, overall, China
Mobile Payment’s full year operating results were at best, lackluster. It
was however deemed acceptable in light of the increased competition
and unprecedented challenges which have occurred in 2015. Moving
ahead in 2016/2017, management will continue to work with China
Mobile Payment to improve its operating performance by better
managing its operating expenses.
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When management steered the Company to focus on the
telecommunications industry in the PRC market, we were confident
that we would be able to capture new opportunities with strong
growth potential and develop them into new growth drivers for the
Group. One idea was to create online platforms for the distribution of
mobile application products and value-added services. \We believed
that we can leverage off of our strengths in business and product
development to set up joint ventures with multinational companies to
introduce and procure mobile application products and services. With
this mindset, we had aligned ourselves with a number of the PRC's
large enterprises in the telecommunications and multimedia industry.
We executed strategic link-up agreements whereby the parties
concerned in each of the agreements would work together to explore,
formulate, and develop new businesses for our mutual benefit.

We had a relatively good start. However, the tailwinds and negative
effects of global economic conditions continued to have a strong and
adverse impact on the overall business and operating environment in
the PRC. In general, sentiments and momentum remained positive,
but slower macro-economic growth for the PRC market is inevitably
expected. Moreover, greater and more complex competition have
made the telecommunications industry significantly more challenging.
To our detriment, over the course of time, many of our existing
business partners have either decided or started to examine or
reformulate existing business goals and objectives. They began
to adopt or have adopted different implementation approaches or
strategies. In some cases, some of our business partners have even
decided to temporarily or permanently shelved their plans.
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In the area of software development, in 2012, the Company’s foray
into the PRC market started by teaming up with ChinaSoft and
submitted a tender for specific parts of the wireless city project,
China Mobile sponsored project. China Mobile had aspired to develop
and construct a wireless infrastructure network capable of offering
everyone in PRC cities free Wi-Fi access. However, after China Mobile
Group Guangdong Company Limited, a subsidiary of China Mobile,
had broken ground and solicited bids for construction of the initial
phase of the network infrastructure, for one reason or another, China
Mobile had subsequently decided that the overall planning of the
Wireless City Project at the group/country level may have been too
ambitious. They have ultimately decided that the wireless city network
infrastructure platform in each province should be built individually. As
such, the responsibility and opportunity of this task were delegated to
their individual provincial subsidiaries. In the aftermath, the Company
felt it would be too onerous to work with so many subsidiaries
of China Mobile as we are not set up with the necessary human
resources.

In a similar situation, in 2014, the Company had partnered with
ChinaSoft and submitted a tender for contracted work relating to repair
and maintenance, and operations of China Mobile's Fetion platform
and its related social products and services offering, and to construct
phase | of China Mobile's version of a unified payment system
platform. Again, China Mobile subsequently had examined their
business approach for Fetion as well as how to establish the unified
payment system platform. Prior to this project being re-directed,
the Company had received a total of RMB15 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$18.75 million) for repair and maintenance services
rendered.

With prior experience, in 2015, the Company quickly moved on
to work directly with China Mobile Shenzhen to assist them with
developing and constructing a unified payment system platform as
well as a monitoring and management system. As of date, the initial
phase of the unified payment system platform has been built for a
contracted amount of approximately RMB1.67 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2 million) while the monitoring and management
system is still under construction with phase | & Il having been
completed for a contracted amount of approximately RMB4.12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.94 million).
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For the purpose of business development, in 2014, the Company
entered into an agency framework agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Aspire. E N &8 18F 2 Bl £ B R 2 A (Guangzhou YBDS IT Co.,
Ltd.*) ("Guangzhou YBDS"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, was appointed as Aspire’s agent, on a non-exclusive
basis, to promote and distribute Aspire’s unified communications
businesses, irrespective of whether such businesses are operated
by Aspire or not, and provide relevant customer service and support
thereunder in each province of the PRC for a term of one year. The
term of the Agreement automatically renews for another one year
upon expiry until either party terminates the Agreement. The link up
with Aspire marks a milestone in the Company's history. As of date,
the Company continues to be in an open and ongoing dialogue with
Aspire to develop and provide new products and services to existing
and potential upstream and downstream partners within the industry.

In the area of e-commerce in 2014, the Group had entered into a letter
of intent with # B /AJHXARRMD B R X RIEHE 5 2 7] (PetroChina
Trading Company Limited*) and X 2 & F+ & 7% & R 2 7] (China
Telecom Bestpay E-commerce Ltd.*) (“CT E-commerce”). Pursuant
such letter of intent the parties agreed to fully cooperate with each
other to jointly market the business of payment clearing and recharge
of prepaid petrol cards, and promote its development to enhance
products competitiveness and enrich their services to customers. CT
E-commerce, through their Bestpay platform, will provide clearance
services for non-cash payments to enable PetroChina customers
to pay for the purchase of petroleum through prepaid cards via
PetroChina’s sales network.

Additionally, CT E-commerce will install compatible POS terminals at
PetroChina’s sales network to allow Bestpay users to settle payment
through their mobile phones. Guangzhou YBDS will be responsible
for the provision of POS terminals and relevant support services.
As for the recharging of prepaid petrol card business, the parties
will work together to establish online, offline and vocal channels to
accept recharging requests from customers and provide the relevant
support services. The parties will also cooperate together to unravel
the market's potential to expand its customer base by launching
multimedia marketing campaigns and publicity.
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This tri-party letter of intent had represented one of the more
promising business opportunities for the Group. However, PetroChina
subsequently halted the project due to internal reasons. In 2015, the
Company went on to provide technical advisory services for & /4
7 208 & & 2~ | (PetroChina Western Pipe Company*), a PetroChina
subsidiary.

On a more positive note, based on the premise of the above-
mentioned letter of intent, the Company was able to enter into a
cooperation agreement with various parties including Shanghai CT
E-commerce in 2015. Similar to the underlying business principles in
the above-mentioned letter of intent, as of 31 May 2016, the Company
has already completed the installation of POS terminals in certain retail
locations network.

In the area of multimedia, in 2014, the Company had entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with BesTV, a new media corporation
controlled by RTSSM whose shares are listed on The Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600637), to collaborate on exploring and
developing new media technology and contents on IPTV, mobile TV,
internet TV, mobile internet, multimedia stage design and production,
and digital media platform research and development, offering such
products and services via smart phones, PCs, televisions and tablets.
However, shortly after having signed the strategic cooperation
agreement, BesTV and RTSSM both underwent a senior management
re-shuffle. In addition, BesTV was merged with the Shanghai Oriental
Pearl Group in 2015 and then renamed as Shanghai Oriental Pearl.
Moreover, the PRC law pertaining to the operation of IPTV network
services inter-provincially changed, making it very difficult for the
Company to further pursue any business opportunities with Shanghai
Oriental Pearl. The Company has decided to re-visit this opportunity
at a later time when circumstances are more conducive for a mutually
beneficial cooperation.
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Also in 2014, the Company, CTS Group and China Telecommunications
Corporation have entered into a strategic cooperation agreement.
Pursuant to such agreement, the parties agreed to cooperate in
tourism, hotels, ticketing, mobile payment and other areas within
the business scope of the CTS Group. The Company had made
some initial progress on our further cooperation via the CTS Group's
Mangocity network. However, after an internal review, for one reason
or another, the CTS Group had decided not to proceed. Since then
there has been no further discussion.

Additionally, in 2014, the Company have entered into a strategic
cooperative agreement with CVCM, a wholly owned subsidiary of
China Vanguard Group Limited (R ¥ & & ik 5 B R 2 &) (“CVG")
(stock code: 8156). The parties concerned agreed to make use of
their capability in software and hardware development to connect and
integrate POS terminals so that all CVG's lottery distribution points
will be equipped with the Group’ non-cash online and offline payment
system, including those on CT E-commerce’s Bestpay platform
and other non-cash payment methods, such as mobile payment,
contactless payment, the debit cards issued by China UnionPay
(R B $RE) and other financial institutions. However, on 3 April 2015,
the Ministry of Finance (7 2 A R 2k 7 B3 B B &), Ministry of Public
Security (1% A R FE A Z #F) and six other ministries of the PRC
in a joint statement announced to reconfirm that internet lottery sales
is strictly prohibited without prior written approval from the relevant
authorities. Since then the Company has halted all discussions in
relation to this commercial opportunity.

And finally, the Group’s system integration services and other value-
added technical consultation services and hardware-related business
in Hong Kong has continued to be principally facilitated by Norray,
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. During the
year, Norray had generated revenues of approximately HK$10,366,000
and incurred loss from operations of approximately HK$882,000. Given
the size of their operations, continuing loss, and the non-core nature
of their business, the Company has been considering disposing the
Group's entire shareholding interest in Norray at an appropriate time.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

To ensure that the Company is financially stable with sufficient
financial resources to continue the development of its proposed
projects, the Company had on 5 August 2013, raised net proceeds
of approximately HK$100 million through a subscription (the
“"Subscription”). Immediately after the completion of the
Subscription, Happy On Holdings Limited held 987,888,771 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 72.83% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

As stipulated in the circular of the Company dated 11 July 2013, such
proceeds were to be applied in the following manner:

(i)  approximately HK$30,000,000 will be used to pay up the
remaining registered capital of Guangzhou YBDS and b R 1E#
=B8RI AR AT (Beijing YBDS IT Co., Ltd.*) (“Beijing YBDS");

(i) approximately HK$50,000,000 will be used as further investment
for contribution towards the total investment amounts of
Guangzhou YBDS and Beijing YBDS; and

(i) the remaining balance as general working capital of the
Company.

The Company had previously applied approximately HK$9,400,000 (or
approximately RMB7,350,000) and approximately HK$5,500,000 (or
approximately RMB4,330,000) of the proceeds to pay up the remaining
initial registered capital of RMB20,000,000 and increased registered
capital of RMB20,000,000 of Guangzhou YBDS, respectively.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had applied
approximately HK$19,785,000 (or approximately RMB15,670,000) of
the proceeds to pay up the outstanding remaining increased registered
capital of Guangzhou YBDS.
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At the time of the Subscription, only 20% of the registered capital or
RMB4 million of Beijing YBDS has been paid up with the remaining
80% or RMB16 million due to be paid on or before 18 December
2014. The Company had intended to apply to the Bureau of Foreign
Trade and Economic Cooperation of Beijing Municipality (3t i $4MNE
S#EESVER) to increase the registered capital of Beijing YBDS from
RMB20 million to RMB40 million and its total investment from RMB40
million to RMB80 million. A sum of approximately HK$45.5 million
from the proceeds of the Subscription was earmarked for paying up
the initial registered capital and increased registered capital of Beijing
YBDS (the “Capital Increase”). The intent of the Capital Increase
was to enable the Group's subsidiaries to meet the minimum capital
threshold requirement when submitting bids for proposed projects
offered by the relevant telecommunications service providers in the
PRC.

Given the Company has acquired China Mobile Payment on 23
December 2014, a holding company that owns a subsidiary with the
aforesaid threshold requirement for bids submission, this corporate
action is no longer deemed to be necessary. The Company has
already commenced the process of deregistration of Beijing YBDS.
De-registration has entered into the final stage and is pending for the
approval of PRC authority.

Moreover, the Company intends to apply the aforesaid earmarked
proceeds of approximately HK$45.5 million for new potential projects
and for general working capital purposes. As at the date of this
announcement, the Company has not identified any potential projects.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$326,982,000, representing an increase of
approximately 100% when compared with the last corresponding
year. The significant increase in revenue was principally due to having
consolidated the operating performance of China Mobile Payment
which resulted in a significant increase in business volume in the
trading of G-PON equipment and E-PON equipment in which the
Group having generated revenue approximately HK$311,692,000
during the year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$4,253,000 as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$2,819,000 for the year ended
31 March 2015.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

During the year under review, when compared with the last
corresponding year, revenue generated from hardware sales increased
by approximately 120%, revenue from maintenance services
increased by approximately 69% while revenue from consultancy
services decreased by approximately 71%. Additionally, revenue from
software sales increased by approximately 15% when compared with
the last corresponding year.

Geographical segments

The provision of system integration services and other value-added
technical consultation services and hardware-related business mainly
caters for the PRC market. Revenue from the Hong Kong segment
represented approximately 3% of the total revenue (2015: 15%).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2016, the shareholders’ funds of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$112,629,000. Current assets were approximately
HK$391,065,000, mainly comprising cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$149,754,000 and trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$161,812,000. Current liabilities mainly comprised
trade and other payables of approximately HK$266,386,000. The net
asset value per share was approximately HK$0.096. The Group's
gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of bank borrowings and long-
term debts over total equity, was nil. The liquidity ratio of the Group,
determined as a ratio of current assets over current liabilities, was
1.46:1 (as at 31 March 2015: 1.72:1).
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EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group was only exposed to
limited currency exchange rate fluctuation risks as virtually all of the
Group’s monetary assets and liabilities were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars as it conducts its business transactions principally in this
currency. The currency exchange rate risk of the Group is therefore
considered to be immaterial, and the Group did not engage in any
hedging activity.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had operating lease commitments
in respect of rented premises and equipment of approximately
HK$2,767,000 (2015: HK$6,485,000). As at 31 March 2016 and 2015,
the Group had no significant capital commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no charges on the
Group's assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 114 employees (including 7
Directors) (2015: 116 employees (including 10 Directors)). The total
remuneration paid to employees, including Directors, for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$23,227,000 (2015:
HK$14,719,000). Remuneration is determined by reference to market
terms and the performance, qualification and experience of each
individual employee. Annual year-end double pay is paid based on each
individual employee’s performance as recognition of and reward for
their contributions. Other benefits accruing to the employees include
contributions made to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme
and a group medical scheme. We also subsidize our employees for
pursuing further studies in related fields.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had no significant
investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FUTURE PROSPECTS AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

It was unfortunate that China Mobile had a change of heart with
offering payment services through Fetion under a unified payment
system platform. However, the Company has learned how to deal
with these circumstances under these volatile and challenging times.
As a result, the Company is now directly working with China Mobile
Shenzhen to assist them on developing and constructing a unified
payment system platform as well as a monitoring and management
system. Thus far, for this project, we have already completed the
initial phase of the unified payment system platform as well as phases
| & Il of the monitoring and management system.

Once the unified payment system platform is completed and
successfully implemented, the management believes it is possible for
us to replicate this model and sell it to other units and/or subsidiaries
of China Mobile. Moreover, we would proceed to induce large
enterprises and multinational companies within the PRC, such as
China Telecommunications Corporation, or the now developing POS
terminal payment network, to join in the development and promotion
the widespread use of this platform.

The Company and Aspire remain highly committed to work together
in a manner that is mutually beneficial to both parties under the
Agreement. We continue to be in close contact with Aspire with
ongoing dialogue on developing a proposed form of joint cooperation.
Management is confident that these discussions will come to fruition
in the near term.

The Company started working with Shanghai CT E-commerce from
2015 on the development and construction of the e-commerce
network platform of payment clearance and POS installation and its
promotion to enhance products competitiveness and enrichment of
services to customers. As of 31 May 2016, the Company has already
completed the installation of 120 POS terminals in certain retail
locations under one network.
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Shanghai CT E-commerce, through their Bestpay platform, has
committed to provide clearing services for non-cash payments under
the new platform currently under development. Over the course of
time as the project develops and matures, we strongly believe that
this project will bring in other business opportunities for the Group
to participate in, such as additional installation of POS terminals in
other retail locations within the network in the PRC, revenue sharing
arrangement, and technical advisory services, among others. From
management’s perspective, the opportunity at hand is quite promising
and has great potential

The Directors believe that the mobile phone has become the ultimate
terminal for consumer mobile applications globally. Our continuing,
ongoing and existing business development on the unified payment
system platform in various projects and our excellent business
relationships with major key players within the telecommunications
industry will create synergy and enhance cooperation amongst the
parties concerned to provide consumer-friendly payment services
using the mobile phone as a terminal for mobile applications in
business, entertainment, work and in daily life. Irrespective of the
transaction amounts involved, the cooperation serves as a stepping
stone to expand our coverage for online and offline payment services,
which is in line with the Group's strategy of designing, developing,
manufacturing and operating leading products for mobile networks
as well as online and offline payment services, and is expected to
generate further revenue for the Group.

*  For identification only.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the Code Provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2016 except for the deviations from Code Provisions

A.1.8 and A.2.1 of the Code as explained as follows:

Code Provision A.1.8

Code Provision A.1.8 stipulates that the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors.

During the reporting period, the Board considered that under the
current close management situation of the Group and business scale,
the possibility of actual litigation against the Directors is very low. The
Company will consider reviewing various insurance cover proposals
and will make such an arrangement as appropriate.

Code Provision A.2.1
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated.

The executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Xiaogi and Mr. Yau Hoi
Kin are focused on evaluating new potential business and investment
opportunities and formulating and implementing business strategies
to enhance the revenue and growth potential of the Company. Hence,
a new chairman and chief executive officer will not be appointed until
suitable candidates have been identified for such purpose.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company's
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code.

The Board conducted reviews of the system of internal controls of the
Group to ensure an effective and adequate internal controls system
is in place. The Board also convened meetings to discuss financial,
operational and risk management controls.

In 2016, the Company continued to implement and follow up on
those suggestions and recommendations made by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Hong Kong as part of their 2015 comprehensive review
on the internal controls of the Group. As such, the Group's internal
supervision and risk prevention measures continue to improve.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have complied
with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

EFFECTIVE AND EXPERIENCED BOARD

Board Composition
The Board comprised the following members during the year:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Chaoyong (Resigned on 2 February 2016)
Mr. Wang Xiaoqi

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard (Retired on 3 August 2015)

Dr. Huang Youmin (Retired on 3 August 2015)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy

Dr. Wong Wing Lit

Mr. Ngan Yu Loong

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to, among other matters,
review past financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group's direction and strategy.
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Details of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

TREVNEFE 2 HFERCIRFE

Attendance/ Attendance/

Number Number

of Board of General

meetings meetings

held during held during

the year the year

HERE HERE,

FRETZ FRETZ

EEES3H BRERAERE

Mr. Wang Chaoyang STRRBICE 2/4 0/1
(Resigned on 2 February 2016) (R=-ZF— V= = HEHF)

Mr. Wang Xiaoqi TFrEEEEE 6/6 11

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin MEREEE 6/6 11

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard BESESE 2/2 11
(Retired on 3 August 2015) (R=ZF—AF/NA=HRF)

Dr. Huang Youmin BERRBL 2/2 1/1
(Retired on 3 August 2015) (R-—ZF—aF/1H=HRE)

Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun REREE 2/6 171

Mr. Ngan Yu Loong BARER 5/6 0/1

Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy [AsrRE L 5/6 1/1

Dr. Wong Wing Lit HEREL 5/5 /1

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony WFE LA 5/6 0/1

Functions of the Board EEg 2R

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group's overall
strategy, considering and approving financial statements, material
contracts and transactions as well as other significant policy and
financial matters. The Board delegates the day to day operation and
administration functions to the executive Directors and management,
while preserving the right to finally approve key matters and
strategic decisions. When the Board delegates certain aspects of its
management and administration functions to management, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The
Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Schedules and draft proposed agendas for all Board and committee
meetings are normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notice to regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least 14
business days before the meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors/committee members, to the
extent possible, at least 3 days before each Board or committee
meeting to keep the Directors or committee members apprised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company enabling
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director have
separate and independent access to senior management whenever it
deems necessary.

The secretary of the meeting is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current practices of the Board, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests relating to a
substantial shareholder, director or Directors, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s articles of association also contains provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such substantial
shareholder, director or Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Company's articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term of service. On 21
June 2012, two of the current independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy and Dr. Wong Wing Lit, entered
into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 30 January 2012 and 17 February 2012,
respectively, and are subject to retirement by rotation as they shall
offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the Company's
articles of association. On 12 June 2015, each of Dr. Chow and Dr.
Wong entered into a new appointment letter with the Company
for a term of one year commencing from 30 January 2015 and 17
February 2015, respectively, renewable automatically thereafter until
termination by either the Company or the Director giving to the other
not less than one month’s notice in writing and subject to retirement
by rotation as they shall offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. Mr. Ngan Yu Loong was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
2 December 2013. Mr. Ngan entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 2 December
2013 and is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company's articles of association of the Company. Mr. Tse Yee Hin,
Tony was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 15 May 2014. Mr. Tse entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 15 May 2014 and is subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company's articles of association of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their independence
of the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
considers that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the Company.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The term of office for Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun, the non-executive Director, is
for a period of one year commencing from 24 August 2015.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated.
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The executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wang Xiaogi and Mr. Yau Hoi
Kin are focused on evaluating new potential business and investment
opportunities and formulating a new business strategy to enhance
the revenue and growth potential of the Company. Hence, a new
chairman and chief executive officer will not be appointed until
suitable candidates have been identified for such purpose.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Information of
Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial, business,
family or other material and/or relevant relationship between the
executive Directors and members of the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee"”) was
established in May 2000, and the Company had adopted a revised
specific terms of reference as of 31 December 2015 in accordance
with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Ngan Yu Loong,
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy, Dr. Wong Wing Lit and Mr. Tse Yee Hin,
Tony, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ngan
Yu Loong is the current chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group's
audit findings, accounting policies and standards, changes of
accounting rules (if any), compliance to the GEM Listing Rules, internal
and audit control, and cash flow forecast.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the internal control
system of the Group.

During the year, the Group’s unaudited quarterly and half-yearly results
and audited annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee and have opined such financial
statements complied with the applicable accounting standards and
that adequate disclosures have been made.
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During the year under review, four meetings of the Audit Committee REBEEE @  SXZELRITMNAE
were held. Details of the members’ attendance of the Audit % - B EZE @€ 2K E HEDIRT
Committee meetings are as follows: [0S
Attendance/
Number of
Audit Committee
meetings held
during the year
HERE,
RERET
EREEEERRY
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong (Chairman) EARBER A (ER) 3/4
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy A=AELT 4/4
Dr. Wong Wing Lit HEEZIE L 4/4
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony HFEH LA 3/4
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHNEEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in November 2005 and the Company
had adopted a revised specific terms of reference as of 2 December
2013 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirements set out under Code Provision.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised Dr. Chow
Ka Ming, Jimmy, Mr. Ngan Yu Loong, Dr. Wong Wing Lit and Mr.
Tse Yee Hin, Tony, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy is the current chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once annually or on an
as needed basis. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and determine on behalf of
the Board the specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration
Committee has performed its duties to review the remuneration of
Board members and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun.
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During the year under review, two meetings of the Remuneration

Committee were held. Details of the members’ attendance of the

Remuneration Committee meeting are as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Remuneration
Committee
meetings held
during the year

HERE,

RERBITZ

FMEESEERAE

Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy (Chairman) AsREL(EfE) 2/2
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong EABE ST 2/2
Dr. Wong Wing Lit HERE L 2/2
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony WFEEE 1/2

The policies for the remuneration of executive Directors and, if

appropriate, independent non-executive Directors are:

to ensure that none of the Directors should determine their own
remuneration;

the remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with
which the Company competes for human resources;

the Group should aim to attract and retain executives and to
motivate them to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst
taking into account individual performance; and

the remuneration should reflect the performance, complexity of
duties and responsibility of individuals.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee"”) was established in May 2011 and the Company
had adopted a revised specific written terms of reference as of 2
December 2013 in compliance with the Code Provision A.5.

The Nomination Committee comprised Mr. Ngan Yu Loong, Dr. Chow
Ka Ming, Jimmy, Dr. Wong Wing Lit and Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ngan Yu Loong is
the current chairman of the Nomination Committee. He was appointed
as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 2
December 2013.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to identify
potential candidates and make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee has
performed its duties to make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun as non-executive Director.

Pursuant to code provision A.5.6 of the Code, the Board has adopted
a board diversity policy and the Nomination Committee is responsible
for monitoring the achievement of the measurable objectives set out
in the policy.

The Company recognizes and seizes the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.
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In designing the Board’'s composition, board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held. Details of the members’ attendance of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings held
during the year

HERE,

RERET
REZESER
2ERH
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong (Chairman) BAMERSE A (EE) 2/2
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy AsREL 2/2
Dr. Wong Wing Lit HERE L 2/2
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony WFEEE 1/2

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the
Board remain informed and relevant, the Company will be responsible
for arranging and finding suitable training for Directors.

The Company will provide a comprehensive package of induction
materials about the duties, responsibilities and liabilities as well as
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company.

B
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, an individual training HE-—Z— R NE=A=+—BI-FKE
record of each Director is set out below: B SEE7EAEYIEHIMT
Attending
or participating
in courses/
seminars/ Reading
conference/ materials
workshops relating to
relevant to rules and
rules and regulations and
regulations and discharge of
the Group's directors’
business/ duties and
directors’ duties responsibilities
HE S e
REBMER
EEHEER RERRELEAR
ERREG EBIR BT
RE Mg EERER
Name of Director EEng i YR (=] BEEzms
Executive Directors: HITES .
Mr. Wang Chaoyong EREE A v v
(Resigned on 2 February 2016) (R=F—NF= HZHEHE)
Mr. Wang Xiaoqi TEmLA v v
Mr. Yau Hoi Kin idc3 =S v v
Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard BEREE 4 4
(Retired on 3 August 2015) (R=ZF—HF/\H=HRAE)
Dr. Huang Youmin BERRELT v 4
(Retired on 3 August 2015) (R=—ZF—7F/1H=HRT)
Non-executive Director: EHITESE :
Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun Rt E 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITES:
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy [AsREL v v/
Dr. Wong Wing Lit HERREL 4 4
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong ERMRBESR & 4 4
Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony HIFEILE v 4
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external service provider, Mr. Tung Tat
Chiu, Michael (“Mr. Tung"”) as its company secretary. Although Mr.
Tung is accessible by all executive Directors and senior management,
Mr. Yau Hoi Kin and Mr. Wang Xiaogqi, our executive Directors, are the
principal persons with whom Mr. Tung liaises with. For the year ended
31 March 2016, Mr. Tung has received relevant professional training
of not less than 15 hours to update his skills and knowledge.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited whose term of
office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited will be re-appointed as auditors of the Company
for approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company'’s auditors, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, in respect of
its audit and non-audit services was as follow:
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Type of Services HKS' 000
B 7% %8 5 FTET
Audit services BB 340
Non-audit services FEZIRT 70
Total #Et 410

During the year under review, all of the auditors’ remuneration for
non-audit service assignments was paid to Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited in relation to reviewing 2015/2016 1st quarterly report of the
Company for an amount of HK$10,000, reviewing 2015/2016 interim
report of the Company for an amount of HK$50,000 and reviewing
2015/2016 3rd quarterly report of the Company for an amount of
HK$10,000.

REBFER @ FBEZRBEE 2B
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board conducted reviews of the system of internal controls of the
Group to ensure an effective and adequate internal controls system
is in place. The Board also convened meetings to discuss financial,
operational and risk management controls.

In 2016, the Company continued to implement and follow up on
those suggestions and recommendations made by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu in Hong Kong as part of their 2015 comprehensive review
on the internal controls of the Group. As such, the Group’s internal
supervision and risk prevention measures continue to improve.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the auditors’ report contained in this annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board and
sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be properly
directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the principal place of business of Company in
Hong Kong at Room 1602, 16/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by post for the attention of the Board.
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Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board by
written requisition. Pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company, a shareholder or shareholders who wish to put forward
a proposal should convene an extraordinary general meeting by
following the procedures as set out in paragraph headed “How
shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has uploaded its memorandum and articles
of association on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(http://wvww.hkexnews.hk/) and the Company (http://www.ybds.com.hk/).

There are no significant changes in the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaoqi (L&) (“Mr. Wang Xiaoqi”), aged 37, was
appointed as an executive director on 17 March 2015 and re-elected
on 3 August 2015, and a director of nine subsidiaries within the Group.
He has been a business manager of Guangzhou YBDS IT Co., Ltd.*
(BMEBEBEREAR2AT), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, since May 2014. He has over 15 years of working
experience in the telecommunications industry in China. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wang Xiaogi was the deputy general manager
of Hua Strong Network Science and Technology Limited Company*
FEXR BRI B R A ) and Beijing Huagin World Technology Limited
Company* (Jt REZH KR FR A F]), both of which are indirect
subsidiary of the Company, from 2000 to 2014. Mr. Wang Xiaogi has
resigned from both companies in April 2014. He obtained a bachelor
degree from Beijing University of Technology (b R T KE) in
Computer Controls and Applications. As at the date of this report, Mr.
Wang Xiaogi is interested in 382,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
representing approximately 0.028% of the total number of ordinary
shares of the Company. Saved as disclosed above, Mr. Wang Xiaoqi
does not have any interest in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO"). Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Wang Xiaoqgi does not hold any positions in the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and does not hold any directorships
in any public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang Xiaogi is not connected with any
Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin (F8&5%4) (“Mr. Yau”), aged 49, was appointed
as an executive Director on 30 January 2012 and re-elected on 23
June 2014. Mr. Yau has a wealth of practical experience and extensive
knowledge of the business practices, and of the legal and regulatory
frameworks in the PRC. He had previously held senior positions in
major international houses and spearheaded the listing of various
State — and privately owned companies in the PRC. Before that, Mr.
Yau was an executive with the investment window company of the
Guangzhou City Municipal Government. He had previously held an
executive director position at a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Yau graduated with a degree in industrial enterprises management
from EEKETRZZRE (now known as HEE T KE or Wuhan
University of Technology) and received his post-graduate certificate in
business administration from the Hong Kong Open University. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Yau does not hold any positions in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and does not hold any directorships in any
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Yau is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun (&2 EE&554E) (“Mr. Hsu”), aged 32, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 24 August 2012 and re-elected on 3
August 2015. He is engaged in film, television, and media-related
production in both PRC and United States. He has been a producer
of a 3D movie in Los Angeles while pursuing postgraduate studies
of Cinematic Arts Film and Television Production at University of
Southern California in United States. Mr. Hsu obtained his Bachelor
of Arts Degree in English and Chinese Literature from College of
Liberal Arts of National Central University in Taiwan. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Hsu does not hold any positions in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and does not hold any directorships in any
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Hsu is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

o B W AT PR 2 R R

weRAE(HELEE]D  49% RN-F
——F—A=tHEZEYIN_FT—NO
FRAT=ZREERPITES - L
ARPERRERANNEZREREEER
HEESEEBEHERLEZMH o
ERIZEERBETSABL T
BEFHRETEAELLERRZLEHT
15 o AT - HEEERMNTARBFR
BEORBETHRAER - REVN—HEE
BLETRARIHERITES B - L
EXNEENKETIZER CGREIRET
RE)VWEFITREREREM - WRE
BARABEARTIRHERRERSE ° I
EXHBEEIN - HEERBE=FILE
R R B R E AN B R R EE E B
i MEBEEEFNEBIEIMEMAES
Mg EMZEARRAREEEMNES
BA% o R EXCRBEES - HAEEARD
AENES  SAEERE TERRZ:
RO R A A R o

FHITES
REREE(#HREE]D 32 RZF
——FNAZTHBEZREAIERNITE
FEWR_ZF—RF/\A=ZBEERIEH
TESR - BRPBRREBRREEY - &
REEBEARIE - RABIZHIDE
TEUEA  RRREEREINMNAKZEE
Cinematic Arts Film and Television
ProductionfR TR £ R12 - REERFE A
BRVPRREBYBRREEENERR
MEXBRNBLEMN - R EXRES
N REERBAE=ZFWENARAAH
HAE ] b B 2 RIAE & E IR - TR
BHEREBEBIEIMEMIESFMS LT 2
FRARABEEEMESES - KL
XEEEI  REFEERNRBEME
CERERE FERRFIZERRR
PR AT AT R o

EREXEEERAF | ZT—AFERS 37



Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

B W AT PR 2 R

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy (B ZEB % 4%) (“Dr. Chow”), aged 41, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 30 January
2012 and re-elected on 8 July 2013. He is currently the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Information and System Security Professional
Association, and also a member of the British Computer Society.
Dr. Chow has more than 10 years of managerial experience in the
information technology, engineering and education fields. His current
research interests include mobile robotics, soft-computing, computer
networking and Information security and he has published a number
of international journal papers in his research fields. Dr. Chow received
his BEng (Hons) in Electrical Engineering (First Class Honor) and
Doctor of Philosophy in Electrical Engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1997 and 2001 respectively. He was also
one of the awardees of the Sir Edward Youde Memorial Scholarships
and Sir Edward Youde Memorial Fellowships during his undergraduate
and doctoral degree studies respectively. Save as disclosed above,
Dr. Chow does not hold any positions in the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and does not hold any directorships in any public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years. Save as
disclosed above, Dr. Chow is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Dr. Wong Wing Lit (Z&ZzU% %) (“Dr. Wong”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 17 February
2012 and re-elected on 23 June 2014. He is currently teaching
actuary science and statistics in a university in Hong Kong. He is the
Chairman of The Hong Kong Mathematical Olympiad Association, a
statistician and associate actuary. Dr. Wong is a member of a number
of professional bodies in Hong Kong including but not limited to
Actuarial Society of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Statistical Society, and
was conferred the title of Associate of The Society of Actuaries (ASA)
in USA since 1993. Dr. Wong graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a Master of Philosophy degree and a Bachelor’s
degree in Statistics. He furthered his studies at the University of
Pittsburgh, where he received his Doctorate and Master degree
in Statistics and Mathematics. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Wong
does not hold any positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and does not hold any directorships in any public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the last three years. Save as disclosed above, Dr. \Wong
is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ngan Yu Loong (EE¥#E % 4£) (“Mr. Ngan”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 2 December
2013 and re-elected on 23 June 2014. He is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ngan has 20 years of experience in accounting and finance. He has
been the principal partner of Y. L. Ngan and Company Certified Public
Accountants since 1 July 1996. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ngan
does not hold any positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and does not hold any directorships in any public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the last three years. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ngan
is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony (H & &%) (“Mr. Tse”), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 15 May 2014
and re-elected on 23 June 2014. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree with honors in Finance and Accounting from University
of Salford, United Kingdom and a degree in Executive Master of
Business Administration from Richard Ivey School of Business, The
University of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tse is a member of each
of Illinois Certified Public Accountants Society, American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Accountants Exchange, Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Securities
Professionals Association. Mr. Tse is also an associate member of
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the United
Kingdom and Hong Kong Institute of Certificate Public Accountants.
Mr. Tse has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting and has worked for several international accounting firms,
investment banks and the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse is currently
a managing director of corporate finance department in Essence
Corporate Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and acts as its principal
under the sponsor regime. Mr. Tse is also a non-executive director of
Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8147). Mr.
Tse is a responsible officer licensed under the SFO to carry on Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activities. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tse does not hold
any positions in the Company or any of its subsidiaries and does not
hold any directorships in any public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the
last three years. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tse is not connected
with any Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

*  For identification only.
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Report of the Directors

9 i

The Directors submit herewith the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group focused to
strengthen its business development in the area of trading of high-
tech software and hardware equipment; develop and establish online
platforms to distribute mobile products and provision of value-added
services; and set up joint ventures with multinational companies to
introduce and procure mobile application services, among others.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and operating segments for the
year under review is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 9 to 21 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 52.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 49. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company's share capital and share options are set out in
notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 55 and note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company's
reserve available for distribution to shareholders (comprising share
premium) amounted to approximately HK$101,852,000.

RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

To the best knowledge of the Group, employees, customers and
business partners are the key to have continuous sustainable
development. We commit to be people oriented and build up good
relationship with employees, and work together with our business
partners to provide high quality products and services to achieve the
goal of sustainable development and contribution to the society.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group paid high attention to environmental protection and energy
conservation to enhance the capacity of sustainable development and
undertake relative social responsibility.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAW AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied all related laws and regulations in all material aspects which
may have significant impact on the operation of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the year ended
31 March 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 1 August 2011 by the
shareholders of the Company under which the executive Directors
may, at their discretion, grant options to themselves and any
employees of the Group entitling them to subscribe for shares
representing up to a maximum of 10 per cent of the shares in the
Company in issue from time to time. The purpose of the share option
scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

No options were granted under the share option scheme since
its adoption by the Company or outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or
exercised at any time during the year ended 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Chaoyong

Mr. Wang Xiaoqi

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin

Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard
Dr. Huang Youmin

(Resigned on 2 February 2016)

(Retired on 3 August 2015)
(Retired on 3 August 2015)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy

Dr. Wong Wing Lit

Mr. Ngan Yu Loong

Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony
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Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard and Dr. Huang Youmin have retired as
executive Directors with effect from 3 August 2015, as they would like
to devote more times to handle their personal affairs. Mr. Kwong and
Dr. Huang have confirmed that they do not have any disagreement
with the Board and that there is no matter relating to their retirement
which needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company. Both of Mr. Kwong and Dr. Huang have remained as
consultants to the Group.

Mr. Wang Chaoyong has resigned as executive Director with effect
from 2 February 2016, due to his wish to devote more time on his
other personal endeavors. Mr. Wang has confirmed that he does not
have any disagreement with the Board and that there is no matter
relating to his resignation which needs to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to Articles 83 and 84 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Yau Hoi Kin, Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy and Dr. Wong
Wing Lit shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Yau Hoi Kin, Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy and Dr. Wong Wing Lit,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY’'S SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Yau Hoi Kin and
Mr. Wang Xiaogi are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries.
Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Mr. Chow Chun Lok, Samson
Mr. Chan Chi Kong

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, the Company has entered into (i) a letter
of appointment with the non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Hsu
Chia-Chun for a term of one year commencing from 24 August 2015,
and (ii) a letter of appointment with each of the current independent
non-executive Directors, namely, (a) Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy for
a term of one year commencing from 30 January 2015 renewable
automatically thereafter until termination in accordance with the
terms of the agreement, (b) Dr. Wong Wing Lit for a term of one
year commencing from 17 February 2015 renewable automatically
thereafter until termination in accordance with the terms of the
agreement, (c) Mr. Ngan Yu Loong for a term of three years
commencing from 2 December 2013 and (d) Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony
for a term of three years commencing from 15 May 2014.
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Mr. Yau Hoi Kin and Mr. Wang Xiaoqi presently do not have a fixed
term of service with the Company but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. The
remuneration of Mr. Yau Hoi Kin is determined with reference to
his qualifications, experience and duties and responsibilities in the
Group and prevailing market conditions. The remuneration of Mr.
Wang Xiaogi will be determined with reference to his qualifications,
experience and duties and responsibilities in the Group and prevailing
market conditions.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 36 to 39.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to their relevant qualifications, experience
and duties and responsibilities in the Group and prevailing market
conditions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in November 2005 and
the Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference as of
2 December 2013 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprised Dr. Chow
Ka Ming, Jimmy, Mr. Ngan Yu Loong, Dr. Wong Wing Lit and Mr.
Tse Yee Hin, Tony, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy is the current chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which any
of the Company's holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or a connected
entity of the director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, Mr. Wang Xiaoqi is interested in 382,000
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.028%
of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company. Saved as
disclosed above, none of the other Directors or their respective
associates and the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of
dealing by directors of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as the Directors are aware of and
having made due enquires, the following persons had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group:

FERRRKRONEBRD 258

BmRIAR

R-E—XRNEFE=ZA=+—08 BESEF
HEAFEREANE  TIALRAR
AR D SR A RR 0 P B AR A Rl AR IR 35
H A E KB 5E3361KBTFE 2 B AT
ek EmSAR kR E AR
BREEF AT EEMAIBER TRAERFT
MEMKERRZBRERE LREZE
BEITRRANE % sl DA _FHEES

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
issued ordinary capital as at
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held 31 March 2016
RZB—RE
=R=t+—-H
i 817 HEBITRA
BRREHE, R 4 ZREREE BHBE 2T
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(BE2) (B$%E3)
Happy On Holdings Limited (“Happy On”) (Note 1)  Beneficial owner

Happy On(BfT5E1) EmBAA 987,888,771 (L) 72.83%

Mr. Chan Foo Wing (“Mr. Chan”) (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation
REaRs e (TREE]) (PIEET) REAEER 987,888,771 (L) 72.83%

Notes: PREE -

1. As Mr. Chan is the ultimate beneficial owner and the sole director of Happy On, by 1. FABRSE &£ AHappy OnZ R B2 BB A
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan is deemed to be interested in the 987,888,771 shares held MME—EF  REFHFRIPEED - REEFR
by Happy On. {EFHappy OnFfi#% % 2987,888,771 B A% 1% 7 #&

Ak o
2. “L" means long positions in the shares. 2. [LIFER D 2T -

3 Based on 1,356,250,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the largest and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 51% and 88% of
the Group's total purchases respectively. Sales to the largest and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 77 %
and 88% of the Group’s total sales respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the Directors or
substantial shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a business
which competed with or might compete with the business of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as required under the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the financial period under review and up to the date of this
annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
or is any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of any Directors (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or of
its associated company (made by the Company).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in May 2000, and the Company
had adopted a revised specific terms of reference as of 31 December
2015 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee comprised Mr. Ngan Yu Loong, Dr. Chow Ka
Ming, Jimmy, Dr. Wong Wing Lit and Mr. Tse Yee Hin, Tony, all of
whom were independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Ngan Yu Loong
is the current chairman of the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the corporate governance report on pages 22 to 35 of this
annual report.

AUDITORS

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, the financial statements
of the Company had been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution to re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed to the
shareholders of the Company for approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Yau Hoi Kin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 17 June 2016
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Summary Financial Information
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A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and AEEBEREMBEE 2B AMELS
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as A NEE « BE MIEIEER (FiEE L&

extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out below: BB HER)ZBENT ¢
FINANCIAL SUMMARY MEREE
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE T RFE=A=+—HILFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20154 20144 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHT FAT FET
RESULTS E
Revenue g 326,982 163,853 36,572 53,729 15,727
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRFT SRR (E518),/
vl (2,523) (1,500) (10,419) (11,865) 6,379
Income tax expense FTiS#imx (3.482) (686) (8) (31) -
(Loss)/Profit for the year FA(EE), & F (6,005) (2,186) (10,427) (11,896) 6,379
Attributable to: AT AR -
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ 2SN (4,253) (2,819) (10,481) (11,860) 6,233
Non-controlling interests JEPE RS RE RS (1,752) 633 54 (36) 146
(6,005) (2,186) (10,427) (11,896) 6,379
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BB E 398,345 453,708 131,505 61,206 68,367
Total liabilities waE (267,556)|  (313,043) (8,870) (29,730) (63,864)
130,789 140,665 122,635 31,476 4,503
Attributable to: LA AR -
Owners of the Company PN/NSIEZ =N 112,629 119,864 122,448 31,343 4,334
Non-controlling interests el g 18,160 20,801 187 133 169
130,789 140,665 122,635 31,476 4,503
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Independent Auditors’ Report
P S A% Bt

Q GrantThornton
(e

To the members of Yunbo Digital Synergy Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yunbo
Digital Synergy Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 52 to 124, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

17 June 2016

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

s A A W AR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 Bl Z —Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XE | _T—0F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiE=d TER FHT
Revenue g 5 326,982 163,853
Cost of sales and services SHE KRS A (280,646) (133,423)
Gross profit ER 46,336 30,430
Other income Hapug A 6 2,471 2,111
Distribution costs DR (21,142) (5,419)
Administrative expenses 1TEE X (30,188) (28,622)
Loss before income tax BRAT R ATER 7 (2,523) (1,500)
Income tax expense FriSRiF S 8 (3.482) (686)
Loss for the year FREE (6,005) (2,186)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hit2HE(BA%) Wz
Exchange differences arising on translation of HiggasmnEEBE2
foreign operations that will be reclassified BREBINEREECEREZ5
subsequently to profit or loss (3,871) 235
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMZE(BEIXR)
income for the year, net of tax /WEs (BRBE) (3.871) 235
Total comprehensive expense FREEAEHE
for the year (9,876) (1,951)
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to: UTALTEEER(EE),BF
Owners of the Company AN/NEIE 2= DN (4,253) (2,819)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE S (1,752) 633
(6,005) (2,186)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income UTALEEFRZEER),/
for the year attributable to: WiRsaEE
Owners of the Company RATHA A (7.235) (2,584)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (2,641) 633
(9,876) (1,951)
Loss per share attributable to RRTHEEAERLEERER
the owners of the Company
— Basic (in HK cents) — FHARCGEN) 10 (0.31) (0.21)
— Diluted (in HK cents) —#8(E) 10 (0.31) (0.21)

F56E 1248 2 MBI E4R 6 M5 3R
RZHABID ©

The notes on page 56 to 124 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B W B R DL Ak

As at 31 March 2016 R=ZZE—F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-XRE | ZT—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TERT FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B MR 13 2,594 3,576
Intangible assets mILEE 14 1,134 1,164
Goodwill EES 15 3,552 3,552
7,280 8,292
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 17 32,617 27,823
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e GRIE 18 161,812 246,612
Financial assets designated at fair BEERAFHEFAER L
value through profit or loss TREE 19 46,882 37,935
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBREEEY 20 149,754 133,046
391,065 445,416
Current liabilities it h=
Trade and other payables B 5 M EMER IR 21 266,386 258,500
Tax payable FERTIR 1,170 1,031
267,556 259,531
Net current assets REBEEFRE 123,509 185,885
Total assets less current liabilities HREERRBDERE 130,789 194,177
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables Hofth fE < FRIE 21 — 53,512
Net assets BEEFE 130,789 140,665
Equity e
Equity attributable to the owners FTATEEAELER
of the Company
Share capital N 22 135,625 135,625
Reserves & 25 (22,996) (15,761)
112,629 119,864
Non-controlling interests iR ER 18,160 20,801
Total equity P AAEE 130,789 140,665
Yau Hoi Kin Wang Xiaoqi
piz3;SEE S Ea-30
Director Director
EF EFE

The notes on page 56 to 124 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

F56E 1248 2 MBI E4R 6 M5 3R

RZEFED -

EREXEEERAF | ZT—AFERS 53



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

5 Bl 4 i B R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 REiZ =T —"F=A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-XE | _T—A1F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FTEx TAT
Cash flows from operating activities RELETBH2HERE
Loss before income tax BRETISTIRIEIE (2,523) (1,500)
Adjustments for: KRR IBHAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENREBITE 925 583
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 2 -
Bank interest income RITFEWA (433) (470)
Interest income from structured deposits A BT B (1,844) (522)
Net realised gain on financial assets at BATEA BRI EREEL
fair value through profit or loss Ey-SsNeny - (502)
Written off of property, plant and equipment ME - R R = 34
Impairment loss on other receivables HAh WA 2 R EEE 122 -
Operating loss before working capital changes BBEEEBR L EBEE (3,751) (2.377)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM,H (4,794) 45,586
Decrease/(increase) in trade and g5 MEMEKFIERD,(EM)
other receivables 84,462 (58,681)
Decrease in trade and other payables B REMERFIERD (40,213) (11,812)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations s (8RR 35,704 (27,284)
Income tax paid EREHR (3,289) (164)
Net cash from/[used in) BETEESL
operating activities (B)fF) B &/ FE 32,415 (27,448)
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHZRERE
Acquisition of China Mobile Payment W A B sz (T RHR 31 - 84,814
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEMXE - BE KB (68) (79)
Addition to intangible assets NEEFEE (10) (136)
Purchase of unlisted investment funds BEIELIMREES (10,819) -
Purchases of structured deposits EEAEBEET (593,832) (60,744)
Proceeds from redemption of BRA&BIEFHAERE
structured deposits 593,832 23,311
Interest received U RIS 2,211 992
Net cash (used in)/from KEEEH(EA),/
investing activities FTEA 2R e (8.620) 48,158
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEEYEMTEE 23,795 20,710
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENZREMREEED 133,046 12,112
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes, EXFBHHMFREITE
on cash held (7,087) 224
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, RERBERBTEERREZ
represented by cash at banks and in hand RERBEESZEY 20 149,754 133,046

The notes on page 56 to 124 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADREEAEL
Non-
Share Share Warrant  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
AR FER

Bx  RORE BRRE GERE  ZEE @t i RRAR
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Asat 1 April 2014 R-2-MENA—H 135,625 9993 900 310 (114,382) 122448 187 122635
Comprehensive (expense)income 27 (B%) /&
(Loss/Profit for the year EN(ER)/ &7 - - - - (2819 (2819) 633 (2,186)

Other comprehensive income Efh 2 ENE
Exchange differences arising on BEBINEBEL,

translation of foreign operations A - - - 2% - 85 - 35
Total comprehensive income/ ER2mhsE/
(expense for the year (Bx)a% - - - 2% 2819) (2584) 633 (1951)
Transaction with owners; HBEEARS
Accquisition of China Mobile Payment U880 B 37 (M
(Note 31) (B3231) - - - - - - 19,981 19,981
Total transactions with owners ~ EEE AR5 4% - - - - - - 19,981 19,981
Asat 31 March 2015.and 1 April 2015 R=E—FE
ZA=T-Bk
“E-1FNA-H 135,625 99,935 900 605 (117,20) 119,364 20,801 140,665
Comprehensive expense 2EAX
Loss for the year FREE = - - - (4.253) (4.253) (1,752) (6,005)

Other comprehensive expense ~ Efi2EER
Exchange differences arising on BEBINEBEL,

translation of foreign operations A - - - (2.982) - (2.982) (889) (3871)
Total comprehensive expense  FRAREHLE
forthe year - - - (2982) (4,253) (1.235) (2,681) (9,876)
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-7%
=A=1-H 135,625 99,935 900 (23m) (121,454) 112,629 18,160 130,789

The notes on page 56 to 124 are an integral part of these consolidated 55621248 7 Mfi s A It S 455 B 55k
financial statements. KT EBRZS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fak 3 J B  ME k

For the year ended 31 March 2016 Bl Z —Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Yunbo Digital Synergy Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 May 2000 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The Company'’s registered office is situated at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business is situated
at Room 1602, 16/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"”). The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of system
integration services and other value-added technical consultation
services and hardware-related business. The Group has also expanded
into the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") market in the areas of
manufacturing of ancillary high-tech software and hardware products;
developing and establishing integrated online platforms for distribution
of mobile products and provision of value-added services; and setting
up joint ventures with multinational companies to introduce and
procure mobile application services, among others.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company is Happy On Holdings Limited
("Happy On"), which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 17 June
2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM Listing
Rules”).

The amendments to the GEM Listing Rules with reference to the
requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into effect for the first
time during the current financial year and the main impact is on
the presentation and disclosure of certain information in these
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
and the impacts on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The measurement basis is fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management'’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statement, are disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E —Z—~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March

each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. WWhen assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group's perspective.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. The Group applies the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets to account for all its acquisitions.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

58 YUNBO DIGITAL SYNERGY GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2. ERESHEEHMEw

22 HEEE
REMBRREBEARAREWNBERF
BESF-A=1T—HLL2UBHRE -

MEBARDAEEES 2B - EXE
E2EEEMGIXERGITED
HMBENEBEHERZENIRE
%5 m R ZERERIE

RME—EERAZE -

MEB AR MZEHRGE B EERRLEE
BR&EFAMBRERAZE A

SEARREZIRS - BHREKRERY
mREBEN RS SRR EH -
BHEEBANRARRMEE 2 REHER
RiFE ARKED - AIASE TS HiE
FABEMERERF -

FEFERR M 25 48 IO BT B A B M 2 R 3 FF
ARRERAMEEMGE 28O - MAK
B EL U R F s 2 B AW EDE
MREIMER - BEAREEBIZEE
SAENAMBARERZANRE -
REXRBEHME  AKEAEEUAR
RREEE YN E: Fay NNl b
BETFTGEE D ER EEMIHER
o ARBIRAIFERESEA T
RWKBET 2 A BRI FEESR L
Bl ASEPTAREERAR -

IR TINEE M BIRN R Z #E s
FERARNBDEBEABRGZRESRAZ
5l o MANSREREN Z FFIEIE SR 4R
BEEBRERAAFERDE T IFERE
SEARRBERAZERDNREEL R
ARz 7T 51



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment losses unless the subsidiary
is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to
reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company's profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E —Z—~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value on the acquirer’'s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with the corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill
or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year
from the acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as a financial liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value with corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before
the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group's presentation currency, have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses have been converted into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the
average rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect
of that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or
loss. Any exchange differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of
the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Plant and machinery 20-50%
Furniture and fixtures 20-25%
Office equipments 20%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising on

acquisition of a subsidiary.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset
at the date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill
is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.16).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of

goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses. Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:
Capitalised development costs 5 years
Trademark 10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in note 2.16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit or

loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to development

activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet the

following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product
for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

(i)  the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of development of internally generated software, products
or knowhow that meet the above recognition criteria are recognised
as intangible assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

ii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include:

° Financial assets held for trading; and

° Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management strategy
and information about the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

ii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included in

this category are measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by reference

to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where

no active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include any

dividend or interest earned on these financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than financial assets
through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- It becomes probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

—  The disappearance of an active market for that financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E —Z—~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include

observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such

observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the

payment status of debtors in the group and, national or local economic

conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment losses on financial assets other than trade and other
receivables that are stated at amortised cost are written off against
the corresponding assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
and other receivables is considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
and other receivables is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on a first in first out basis. Net realisable value is

the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated cost of completion and applicable selling expenses.

The Group reviews the condition of inventories at each reporting date,
and make allowance for inventories that identified as obsolete, slow-
moving or no longer recoverable. The Group carries out the inventory
review on a product-by-product basis and makes allowances by
reference to the latest market prices and current market conditions.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, demand
deposits with banks and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

2.11 Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.
They are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2.18).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

2.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods, rendering of services and the use
by others of the Group's assets yielding interest, net of returns and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Revenue from the sale of enterprise software and hardware
products is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

(b)  Maintenance and consultancy service income is recognised over
the life of the agreement on a straight-line basis. The unearned
portion of the maintenance service income received is stated
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(c) Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Impairment on non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments in
subsidiaries and goodwill are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are impaired.
All other assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.16 Impairment on non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less cost of disposal, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business
combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and not
be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined

contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of
its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC
are required to participate in the central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
employees render services during the year. The Group’s obligations
under these plans are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements are recognised in the

consolidated financial statements. The Group operates equity-settled

share-based compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity instruments awarded.
Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in profit or
loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instrument that are expected to vest. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of
equity instrument expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. After vesting date, when the vested share options are
later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E —Z—~F=A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

2.19 Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ =%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Company
is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented net if, and
only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities net
if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

o Hardware: Sales of telecommunication and enterprise hardware
products

o Software: Sales of enterprise software products

° Services: Maintenance and consultancy service income

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
the product and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at
arm'’s length prices.

2.21 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the Group's parent.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family or a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group's consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRSs has no material impact
on how the financial performance and financial position for the current
and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

The Group had not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for current accounting period.

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations which
have been issued by the HKICPA and may be relevant to the Group
in future years but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March

2016.

Effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2016:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
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@ HEE-_FT—XF=ZA=1+—H
LIEFEEARERK ©

R-ZBE-AXEFHNA-BERERFEH
BAEX :

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRSs

Lease’

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation'

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations'
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)

Effective for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2016 or after

(Continued)
Notes:

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4. Effective date not yet determined

The above standards, amendments and interpretations, if they are
relevant to the Group, will be adopted in the annual periods listed. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
the above standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet
in a position to ascertain their impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management estimates the provision of impairment of
trade and other receivables (note 18) by assessing their recoverability.
Provisions are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible and require the use of estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade and other receivables and impairment charge in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

3. ERAHFTHLBIETRUE

HER )

R ==A

T RNEF- A BRI FEHRMAER
N =T — \F— A B &R FEHR AR
3. R=E—NFE— A A &R SRR

4. ERAHFE

FAER] - BETRERE  WREAEES
B SRR R IR - AEBIE
Arfh DR BRI RBREBEZEE  H
RAREEEGEHAKEZRERE
KEAFEIRREERE

4. EXREFHEE KA

et RAE DERNBELERREMEAER
SEAE  BRUELETRBERTL
BREEZARRERTAH

AEBERARKIELEFRERR - BE
BE  BtGHZetEFELHER
BFREREZS YT EMBRFERNZ
BEMBERAEELENAERRZ
T R BRER N 3wt :

B 5 R E MW R E
AEBEREEBTIZE S REMEK
FIE(MEE18) 2 AR EBE S » (AT % E
I RERE - WEEEFEMHIT
NEE)  BRAKEROEELEBER
BIYFBRERAMGT MBS REM
FEMR IR G HR 48 o find TR H B R OR (5t
A AEHEEREANTEE S REM
FEM R IR 2 BREE A K B BB (i aTE L &
BHRARES L
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of inventories (note
17) at each reporting date, and makes allowance for inventories that
are identified as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out the inventory
review on a product-by-product basis and makes allowances by
reference to the latest market prices and current market conditions.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill (note 15) has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2.16. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates about future cash flows and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances. The
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year. Determining
the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the appropriate
adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk factors.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue once it has been determined that it
is probable the economic benefits will flow to the Group. The Group
estimates the likelihood of the recoverability of the consideration,
in particular for those contracts with progress payments being long
overdue or delayed progress billings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. WaksEER

2016 2015
—EB-AF | T 0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FBTT

Revenue: Wz
Hardware T 319,547 145,101
Software Bt 1,544 1,346
Services AR 5,891 17,406
326,982 163,853

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the executive directors that are used to make
operating decisions. Executive directors are considered as the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM").

The CODM review the Group's financial information from hardware,
software and services perspectives. The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information reviewed by the
CODM.

The CODM assess the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of reportable segment profit/(loss). This measurement
basis excludes other income and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude assets that are managed on a central
basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude liabilities that are managed on
a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the
country in which the customer is located, and non-current assets are
based on the country where the assets are located.

BEEECREBENTESAENANUEL
RERRZBE  BMEKEDTE - $17T
EERERIERERRE(XTERE
REE])

ETBEERRENEMS - KERRBET
HMEMANEE W EER - AIEHHD A
BEBELERREFHEN —B2ZHTA

A\
DR e

TEREARERRATBRES RN,
(B 2 EFEEENRRE - A
AAERENEREMBARRS R H -

DREETEHRBETERCEE - D
BREXIZREETEECRE

RO BHREME @ HEDREEP
PrE 2 BIEKEL - SERBEEMNREE
EMEZBRER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

WKk oEER @)

BE-T-AF=AST-ALFEZ

DEEENAT ¢

Hardware Software Services Unallocated Total

E 4 L4 R RAE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TAT FTHERx THET THET

Revenue from external customers ~ #EANIRE P AT 2 Mk 319,547 1,544 5,891 - 326,982

Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ AJ R/ 4BE T,/ (E518) 10,102 312 (1,487) (13,981)* (4,994)

Bank interest income RITHBEHA 433

Other income HpA 2,038

Loss before income tax BRETSTIRIEE (2,523)

Income tax expense (Note 8) PSR (fli5E8) (3.482)

Loss for the year FNEE (6,005)
Depreciation of property, M - BER

plant and equipment HETE 786 1 3 135 925

Amortisation of intangible assets A S - - - 2 2

Addition to non-current assets FEMBE LR 53 4 2 19 78

Impairment loss on other receivables A JEUL T IE R (B 518 - - 122 - 122

*

Unallocated expenses mainly include operating lease charges in respect of rented
premises and headquarter expenses.

* AR TEBEARARYEZKEHEER
SRR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

5.

W=k o EER @

BE_TAF=RA=+—HIEFEZ

2k E L UNNE
Hardware Software Services  Unallocated Total
ks B Bl RAOE MBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FETT FET FETT FBTT
Revenue from external customers #E9NERRF PRS2 Uiz 145,101 1,346 17,406 - 163,853
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A ER¥R 48 (E518) % (7,432) (61) 14,791 (10,909)* (3,611)
Bank interest income SRITH BULA 470
Net realised gain on financial & AEF ABZE
assets at fair value SRIEECEER
through profit or loss e 358 502
Other income Hiplg A 1,139
Loss before income tax PSRRI E e (1,500)
Income tax expense (Note 8) Frie i (Fi5E8) (636)
Loss for the year FNEE (2,186)
Loss on written off of property, &Y% - BE K&
plant and equipment s 7 EE — - _ 34 4
Depreciation of property, ME - HEK
plant and equipment JEITE - - - 583 583
Addition to non-current assets  IEREIEEILIA 6,424 - 136 79 6,639

*

premises and headquarter expenses.

Unallocated expenses mainly include operating lease charges in respect of rented

*
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2016 are as follows:

5. WEkDEER @
RNZEBE-REFE=ZA=1+—RBzHELE

E&=REVUNNE

Hardware Software Services Total

E# Lo BR# #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FERT FERT FERT

Segment assets DEEE 185,274 246 1,164 186,684
Unallocated assets* AP EE 211,661
Total assets B E 398,345
Segment liabilities SPEEE 230,425 39 252 230,716
Unallocated liabilities* AOBEE 36,840
Total liabilities mam 267,556

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

RZE-—RF=A=+—B2Zo8REE

REBWT :
Hardware Software Services Total
B L/ AR% HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THET
Segment assets NEEE 232,777 252 1,330 234,359
Unallocated assets* AOBEE" 219,349
Total assets BEE 453,708
Segment liabilities ok N=N 240,105 50 294 240,449
Unallocated liabilities* RKOBLEE" 72,594
Total liabilities FEN=Er 313,043

*

Unallocated assets mainly include certain other receivables, financial assets designated
at fair value through profit or loss, and cash and cash equivalents. Unallocated liabilities
mainly include certain other payables and accruals and tax payable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The revenue from external customers of the Group by geographical
segments is as follows:

5. WERDEER®
@D BEI D REBYINBRELATE
ZUWER

2016 2015
—B—xF | ZFI0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET

Revenue: gz
Hong Kong HE 10,276 24,963
PRC H 316,706 138,890
326,982 163,853

One (2015: One) single external customer contributes more than 10%
revenue of the Group. Revenues of approximately HK$252,391,000
are derived from this customer for the year ended 31 March 2016.
These revenues are attributable to hardware segment. For the year
ended 31 March 2015, revenues of approximately HK$130,418,000
are derived from this customer. These revenues were attributable to
hardware segment.

As at 31 March 2016, accounts receivable from this external customer
accounted for 81% of the Group's total accounts receivable. As at
31 March 2015, accounts receivable from this external customer
accounted for 86% of the Group's total accounts receivable.

An analysis of the non-current assets of the Group by geographical
segments is as follows:

—Z(ZE—RF: —RK)BEHIIBH
FEEBAEE10% A LK - BHE
TE-RNFEZA=Z+—HLFE B
252,391,000 B2 WamREZEP %
FWRRKEBEGL B BHEZT—HF
ZA=+—BLFE RKEZREFPZH
7 A#%7130,418,000 BT o 2 FEWETIR
BREGDEB -

RZZE—RF=A=+—8 - K%/
R P 2 FE MR SRS AN 62 B B W AR SR 4R
WB1% - M_E—HAF=A=+—H"
KB ZINEBE P 2 ARG N B e
YIRS A2 RE86 % ©

o

ZiE D BN ARE ZIERBEE N
T

2016 2015
“E-RE | ZE—A1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBTT

Non-current assets: FRBEE :
Hong Kong BE 1,023 1,122
PRC =8 6,257 7,170
7,280 8,292
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HflgA
2016 2015
—EB-AF | T 0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interest income on short-term bank deposits RHESRITFER T EWA 433 470
Interest income from structured deposits RELBEFERZFEUWA 1,844 522
Net realised gain on financial assets Tﬁ’\ifﬁ.ﬁﬂ\?ﬁ TZEMEELZ
atfairvalue through profitorloss B # IR 3R = 502
Others ,H\ﬁi? 194 617
24N 2,111
7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. KREASBLATEIR
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BrRETS T ATESIE T E R, (FTA)
2016 2015
ZEB-RF | ZT-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Auditors’ remuneration A GIE A a7 600
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEKAK 273,262 132,674
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BENMEREZITE 925 583
Loss on written off of property, plant and equipment WY - BB KRE 2 BB - 34
Amortisation of intangible assets EREE#E 2
Employee benefit expense (Note 11) EEBAMFE (FEE!) 23,227 14,719
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss bE T (W) 1R (1,361) 113
Impairment loss on other receivables H th FEUGR IR (B B 18 122 -
Operating lease charges in respect of rented premises HAMEZEEHERS 4,105 3,294
Operating lease charges in respect of rented equipment ~ FHARE Y KEHEMRS 1 14
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B A W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

8. FIEBIRAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year as R ANEEEFESHIBEE - éﬁ(ﬁ’\zﬁifg
the Group had incurred losses for taxation purpose (2015: Nil as the WHEREBNEHRAREF(ZZ

Group had incurred losses for taxation purpose). The PRC enterprise 4 : i - AR ANEE RS FHIEERE) - i
income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on the A B FhH B> E TS S (st ER R

estimated assessable profit for the year.

MPEH25% (—ZF—H%5F : 25% ) B

2016 2015
—B-A%F | —_T0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET

PRC enterprise income tax PEGCEMEH
Current year KEE 3,482 686
Income tax expense RSB 3,482 686

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting loss at

RERBRERZASHRAX R EBERZ

the applicable tax rate is as follows: ERET
2016 2015
—E-XRE | _T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
Loss before income tax PSR AT EE (2,523) (1,500)
Tax on loss before income tax, calculated BRETISEIRIEERIIR - IRBEBFEM
at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) TE165%(—ZF—RF : 165%)51E (416) (247)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RAMBA 2 B2 232 9%
Tax effect of non-taxable income HBARMBA 2 BT E (3) (157)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIERTIEE R Zfﬁfk%’i“ 2,592 1,063
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences RERE R =R B E (7) (10)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B A LRI ARERTIEEE - (462)
Effect of different tax rates of READ R AR EE B AT
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions RATNRRE 7 & 1,084 405
Income tax expense FriSfiF > 3,482 636
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9. DIVIDENDS
The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

10. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share for the year is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$4,253,000
(2015: loss of approximately HK$2,819,000) by the weighted average
number of 1,356,250,000 (2015: 1,356,250,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the years 2016 and 2015 equals to the basic
loss per share as the potential ordinary shares on exercise of warrants
were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share because
they are anti-dilutive.

Details of calculation of loss per share:

9. KR
EEZeUEEZRRNBE _T—RF

A=t — LS > KA (—F— 5
o m) e

10. BEREE
$¢?2H§ﬁémﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬂm—7%ﬁ
AJE(HE 18 494,253,000 (- & —

F Jéé'ﬂ,amz,sm,ooo,amBéwiﬁqa
BT @ A% hn#E 39 801,356,250,000 %
(ZZ—H%F : 1,356,250,0000% )5+ & -

HRTTERBREEEEEBRAGR
BEER - AR ASREEEE 25
EAElt —E-RER-T-AF
ZEREEERRENERENESE -

BREEZFEFBET

2016 2015

—ARE | —Z—HF

Loss attributable to owners of the Company (HK$'000) RAEHE AEGEER(TAT) (4,253) (2,819)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBITEBRMEFHE(TR)

during the year (in thousands) 1,356,250 1,356,250

HK cents HK cents

AL Al

Basic loss per share BRENEE (0.31) (0.21)

Diluted loss per share BREEEsE (0.31) (0.21)

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

"N EERAAX(BRESMH
)

2016 2015

—B-AF | T 0F

Salaries, wages and other benefits E2 o Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ?&ﬂ 21,273 13,988
Pension costs — defined contribution schemes RIRE AN — EREHEETE 1,954 731
23,227 14,719
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

12.1 Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of each director, disclosed pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 3 S R WY ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE —Z— ~F=A=+—HILFE

12. EEMERSHNEEENS

121 EEME

RIBBIZER TR - BERTHUEOIE
IBBMNERARIRBIFE2H B (FHESRE
MeERBER)BE SEETMaEY a0
B

Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances to defined

and benefits

contribution

Fees in kind schemes Total
e 2R EEXREH

e BEMFIR HREEMR st
2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-REF FTHET FTHET THET THET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Yau Hoi Kin idis3=Sivad - 2,100 18 2,118
Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard®  EBf& 2 54 - 610 6 616
Dr. Huang Youmin® BEREELY - 325 6 331
Mr. Wang Xiaoqi FRERLA - 646 - 646
Non-executive director FEHITEE
Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun GEES A 104 - - 104
Independent Non-executive BUHHITEE

directors
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy S 130 - - 130
Dr. Wong Wing Lit mEPELT 130 - - 130
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong BEmEELE 130 = = 130
Mr. Tse Yee Hin Tony HFE Ak 130 - - 130
624 3,681 30 4,335

(a) Retired on 3 August 2015.
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 12. EEXH4e R SREEEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued) ()

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

12.1 EBEME ()

Employer's
Salaries, contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind schemes Total
e RAKk EEXRTEE
ok EVMFE KRG EIEK Bt
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RF FHET FHET FHET FHT
Executive directors HiTEF
Mr. Yau Hoi Kin TSR EE - 2,062 18 2,080
Mr. Kwong Wai Ho, Richard BMER A - 2,062 18 2,080
Dr. Huang Youmin BERRETLT - 1,100 18 1,118
Mr. Wang Xiaoqi® FRER A - 16 - 16
Non-executive director HBITEE
Mr. Hsu Chia-Chun REEEE 9% - - 9%
Independent Non-executive BUIHHITER
directors
Dr. Chow Ka Ming, Jimmy FE=RE L 120 - - 120
Dr. Wong Wing Lit HmEREL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ngan Yu Loong EAMABESL A 120 - - 120
Mr. Tse Yee Hin Tony"! HFE LAY 105 - - 105
561 5,240 54 5,855
() Appointed on 15 May 2014. by RZZT—NFRATAAEZRE-
(c) Amount represents remuneration to Mr. Wang Xiaogi in respect of his services as  (c) Z B EBER A RAA RN B A AR E R

R 2FHM - FR-_F-—RF=A+LHEZRE
RARBESE -

managment of a subsidiary of the Company, who was appointed as the Company's
director on 17 March 2015.

FA - AEELEREIAARRESES
SRR F AR AL B
BB JERBEZEE(ZE R
FE) - FR UEBRIAEESHEXF
EREPBREANE(ZF—1F : &) -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2015: Nil).
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

12.2 Five highest paid individuals

122 Ag&EEMEAL

12. EEHERSREEEMNS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group E R ' AEERESSME A TBIER
for the year include two (2015: three) directors whose emoluments  Z(ZZ—FF : =R)EE - BEWE

are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments

ER BRI RER - FREN T HEH

payable to the remaining three (2015: two) individuals during the year =Z(ZZ—HAF : WE) AT Z2WME W

are as follows: T

2016 2015

ZB—AE | _T-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREYMN &R 3115 1,221
Employer’s contributions to defined contribution schemes & 3 [A) /& BBt FET 213K 42 35
3,157 1,256

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

ENFATEER :

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
—E—XF | —_FT—1F
HK$ BT
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z7%51,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7C 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid &KX ' AEETEAAEZF=ME AL
individual as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for X {TMEIEREFMAREE 2 ZE) -

loss of office (2015: Nil).

SERBHECRE( T —RF &) -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEKRRE
Leasehold Plant and Furniture Office
improvements machinery  and fixtures  equipments Total
HENELRE BERESE GARRE WARE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET AT T AT
At1 April 2014 R-Z2-MEMA—H
Cost XAME 332 1,037 1,269 191 2,829
Accumulated depreciation ZHE (200) (286) (1,088) (1) (1,595
Net book amount IREEE 132 751 181 170 1234
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-E-EE
ZRET-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEREFE 132 751 181 170 1234
Exchange differences ERERE 7 - 1 - 8
Acquisition of China Mobile Payment YR8 B (R 2,757 - 6 109 2872
Written off b - (34) - - (34)
Additions NE - 58 21 - 79
Depreciation weE (306) (169) (55) (53) (583)
Closing net hook amount FREEEE 2,590 606 154 226 3,576
At31March2015and 1 April 2015 R=-Z-FEF=A=+-AK
—E-R¥NA—-A
Cost RAE 3,833 1,029 1307 518 6,687
Accumulated depreciation ZiIrE (1,243) (423) (1,153) (292) (3111)
Net hook amount REEE 2590 606 154 226 3,576
Year ended 31 March 2016 BECE-RE
ZA=+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FURESHE 2,590 606 154 226 3576
Exchange differences EREE (114) (1) (6) () (125)
Additions NG - 14 25 29 68
Depreciation e (678) (101) (55) (91) (925)
Closing net hook amount FREMEE 1,798 518 118 160 2,594
At 31 March 2016 R-E-R"E=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 3,660 1,037 1,320 531 6,548
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,862) (519) (1,202) (3n) (3,954)
Net book amount REEE 1,798 518 118 160 2,594
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B A W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

14. BEFEE

Development  Trademark
costs costs Total
B A A R A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBTT FET FHBTT
At1 April 2014 R-B-mEmMA—A
Cost B AR 1,025 - 1,025
Accumulated amortisation ST - - -
Net book amount BREFE 1,025 - 1,025
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-—Z2-—-HE=H=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 1,025 - 1,025
Exchange difference EHER 3 - 3
Additions NE 136 - 136
Closing net book amount FAREEEFE 1,164 - 1,164
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-—B-FEF=A=+-AK
“E-HFWNA—H
Cost RANME 1,164 - 1,164
Accumulated amortisation ER g - - -
Net hook amount BREFE 1,164 - 1,164
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE—E-~"F=HA=1+—H
ILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,164 - 1,164
Exchange difference fEHER (38) = (38)
Addition NE - 10 10
Amortisation ] - (2) (2)
Closing net book amount FARIREFE 1,126 8 1,134
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—RE=ZHA=+—H
Cost B ANE 1,126 10 1,136
Accumulated amortisation RETEE - (2) (2)
Net hook amount REFE 1,126 8 1,134

Note: Development costs mainly include online network systems and video software
development costs. No amortisation was provided as these intangible assets were not

available for use as at 31 March 2015 and 2016.

Mzt : FERAEZRERA AR ERREEEHZHE
BRA BARE_T—AFR-T - F=A
=t+—BYEEFEENHRER - BrEERE

B -
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15. GOODWILL

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the main changes in the
carrying amounts of goodwill result from the acquisition of China
Mobile Payment. The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed
as follows:

15. B8
RBE-_T—HAE&=-A=+—8Bit4F
B NBEEEY TES5REKETS

BT RHY - mBZREFEIITT

2016 2015
—E-RE | —ZT—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Net carrying amount at 1 April REA—HBZEREFE 3,652
Acquisition of China Mobile Payment (Note 31) W g B S AT R (P 5E31) - 3,552
Net carrying amount at 31 March R=ZB=1+—HBZEREEE 3,552 3,552

At end of year RER

Gross and net carrying amount EREAENRFE 3,552 3,552

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss, is mainly
allocated to the cash generating unit of China Mobile Payment under
the hardware segment.

The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit was determined
based on value-in use calculations covering a detailed five-year budget
plan followed by an extrapolation of using a zero percent growth rate
and 8% pre-tax discount rate (2015: 8%). The assumption of pre-tax
discount rate of 8% represents an estimate of the rate the market
would apply having regard to the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the above unit to exceed the recoverable amount
the above unit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 are as

16. RHB AR ZRE

R-B—AXEZA=+—0 TEWE

follows: NAEFEBT ¢
Particulars of issued
Name of company Place of incorporation and paid up capital Effective percentage holding  Principal activities, place of operation
ERTREM
REER SE AR AL it B RAFE BERERASL FEEBREXHH
2016 2015
“E-NE | —Z-1F
Subsidiaries held directly:
BERBEZNEL A -
China 020 Business Group Co. Limited The British Virgin Islands T ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
["BVI'}* US$1 each
China 020 Business Group Co. Limited EERNAE IREREEIZTL 100% 100% REBREER
Lak
Excellent Master Investments Limited Hong Kong™ 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Financing and provision for payroll and
administrative services for group
companies in Hong Kong
Excellent Master Investments Limited N REER 100% 100% RREBZSERARER
RS E RITHR
China Integrated Telecommunications BvI* T ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Group Co. Limited US$1 each
China Integrated Telecommunications EERRAE IREREBIZTL 100% 100% REBREAER
Group Co. Limited LRk
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. REB AR ZRE @)

Particulars of issued

Name of company Place of incorporation and paid up capital Effective percentage holding  Principal activities, place of operation
ERITRER
REER FE AR 3L 1t B RAFE ERFEREIE FEERREEMY
2016 2015
“E2-RE | 1%
Joy Epoch Limited BvI* 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
US$1 each
Joy Epoch Limited RERUHE REREEIETL 100% 100% REBRELR
LER
YBDS Multimedia Company Limited BVI* 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Online network systems development
US$1 each in Hong Kong
YBDS Multimedia Company Limited ERRNAE RERARIETZ 100% 100% REBREBLBREAGL
LRk

Subsidiaries held indirectly:

FEREZNER] -

Norray Professional Computer Limited Hong Kong™ 200,000 ordinary shares 10% 70% Provision of system integration services and
other value-added technical consultation
services and hardware-related business
in Hong Kong

BEEEERERAR B 2000008 & % 0% 0% REBRZREARERAMEE
RirER R REHEE

Able Bloom Technology Limited Hong Kong™ 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong

BERKARAT B s:gil 100% 100% REAREER

Pacific Honour Development Limited Hong Kong™ 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong

BIEERARAT B 1L B 100% 100% REAREER

Guangzhou YBDS IT Co., Ltd. PRC** RMB40,000,000 100% 100% Provision of system integration services and
other value-added technical consultation
services and hardware-related business
in the PRC

BMNEBEERRARAR E AR E0,0000007C 100% 100% RAPEREZGESRERAMEE
BB R R RE BB
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. REIB AR ZRE @)

Particulars of issued

Name of company Place of incorporation and paid up capital Effective percentage holding  Principal activities, place of operation
ERITRER
REER S AR AL it B RAFE ERFEREIE FEERREEMY
2016 2015
“B-RE | ZT-n%

Beijing YBDS IT Co., Ltd. PRC** RMB4,040,000 100% 100% Provision of system integration services and
other value-added technical consultation
services and hardware-related business
in the PRC

I REEAEERRARRT e AR 40400007 100% 100% ReEREZGREREREEE
BB R R RE B R

China Mobile Payment Technology Group ~ BVI* 2 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding in PRC

Company Limited US$1 each
PEHHEE RERLHS IRERERIZTZ 100% 0% RERERR
ARAA ik
Hua Strong Network Science and PRC** USD8,000,000 90% 90%  Investment holding in PRC, trading of
Technology Limited Company residential gateway products and IT
network consultation service

ERBEREBRAR e 8,000,003 7 90% 0% RPEREER EEETREER
RERR SR BERRS

Beijing Huagin World Technology PRC** RMB50,000,000 51% 51% Trading of residential gateway products

Limited Company
EREHTRHMBEBRAT hE B 50,000,007 51% 5% BEELTRBER
* Limited liability company & BRRAFA

*x Wholly foreign owned enterprise

The above table includes subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

> HNEEBELE

EERB LRI ZARRMB AR E
BEEFANREIBRAEEEERE
ZEEFD ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ ==

16.

Professional Computer Limited (“Norray Professional”) and Beijing
Huagin World Technology Limited Company (”Beijing Huaqin”), the
subsidiaries of the Group which has material non-controlling interest

—R"F=ZR=T—BILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to Norray

16. RIBLAB2RE®)
TRILBEBERXEXERARA
(FD%%%J)&%?%%}%%M&EB&
RA)([REE]) (REEREEEAIE

Pt as

([FEriEmiEs ) 2 B A

A&

(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below %} o LA NFT% 2 B 75 E R E AiE1T(E
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination. M ARIEMEA 2 & %8 -
Norray Professional Beijing Huaqin
[HEIES b REE)
2016 2015 2016 2015
TE-RE| —E—HF | ZBE-RE| _T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET TET
NCI percentage eI R B D 30% 30% 49% 49%
Non-current assets ERHEE 22 2 1,859 2,690
Current assets TRENEE 1,010 1,901 232,576 293,561
Non-current liabilities ERHAE - =
Current liabilities nEBE (1,950) (1,939) (197,146) (254,043)
Net (liabilities)/assets (B8R BEFE (918) (36) 37,289 42,208
Carrying amount of NCI eI I i BRI (B (275) (11) 18,272 20,682
Revenue Wz 10,366 13,063 202,235 94,900*
(Loss)/Profit for the year ERN(EER), 5T (882) 184 (2,889) 1,660*
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EW%E( Fa‘ﬂi‘i )/
income for the year Wzs4a (882) 184 (4,919) 1,560*
Net (loss)/profit for the year JEiz Hﬂ& = Fﬂﬁi A
attributable to NCI (E18) /% HH4EE (265) 55 (1,416) 764%
Dividend paid to non controlling 2 {5 F IE3E IR A =S 2 AL B,
interest - - - -
Net cash from (used in)/from  &R& KB (EAH) ELEZ
operating activities I 4 HEE (490) (4,227 (18,128) 31,528*
Net cash (used in)/from investing 3 & E 8 (B )/ EE 2
activities 458 (25) - 9,021 (37,935)*

*

102

Amounts represent results of Beijing Huagin from 23 December 2014 (date that control

commences (note 31)) to 31 March 2015.
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17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2016 2015
—F-RF | ZT0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FBTT
Finished goods — residential gateway products g m—EEREER 32,617 27,823
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ R H WA
2016 2015
—E-RE | —_E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
Bill receivables EUWEE 2,143 55,605
Trade receivables FEUWE 53018 147,237 146,215
Total bill and trade receivables EWEIE R B 558 85 149,380 201,820
Prepayments, deposits and BEARIE - ke k
other receivables Hub U IR 12,432 44,792
161,812 246,612

The credit period granted by the Group to its customers generally AEBREMHTFEE ZBRIEH—RNF0E
ranged from 0 to 120 days (2015: 0 to 90 days). At the reporting date, 1208 (= —F4F : 029008 ) - NikE
the ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bill receivables (net of HHi - KREEEWKE H REHEZIE (1K
provision for impaired receivables) based on invoice date is as follows:  FEU TR TE 7 FE R ) IR E= H H 2 BRiE%

DT
2016 2015
“E-RE | _E—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
0-30 days 0-30H 114,183 137,219
31-60 days 31-60H 80 11,486
61-90 days 61-90H 258 16,778
91-180 days 91-180H 21,544 18,770
181-365 days 181-365H 9,059 1,295
Over 365 days HBiE365H 4,256 16,272
149,380 201,820
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EZRHMEWRIE @)
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bill receivables based on AEEEWE 5 LKEEFIEZRINER 2
due date is as follows: AR O T -
2016 2015
“E-RE | _E—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Neither past due nor impaired Rg B TVERE 104,985 111,269
1-30 days past due #E-30H8 13,672 25,950
31-60 days past due #EA31-601 80 11,486
61-90 days past due #HA61-90H 259 16,778
91-180 days past due #1EA91-180 17,070 18,770
181-365 days past due #1H181-365H 9,058 1,295
Over 365 days past due B E365H 4,256 16,272
44,395 90,551
149,380 201,820

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
customers for whom there were no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to customers
that have a good track record of credit with the Group.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, no trade and bill receivables were
impaired and no provision for impairment was recognised for the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. The impairment was firstly
assessed individually for individual significant or long outstanding
balances, and the remaining balances were grouped for collective
assessment according to their ageing and historical default rates as
these customers were of similar credit risk characteristics.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the
Group's bill, trade and other receivables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values. The other receivables were
neither past due nor impaired. The Group did not hold any collateral
as security or other credit enhancements over the trade and other
receivables.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All bill receivables were denominated in Renminbi and are primarily
notes received from third parties and banks for the year ended 31
March 2016 and 2015 for settlement of trade receivable balances. At
31 March 2016, all bill receivables have maturities of 9 months or less
from 31 March 2016 (2015: 9 months or less).

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

18. ESFRHMEWRIE @)
HE_Z2—R"EK_ZTE—HF=AH
=+—BHLEFE - FIAERKEESUA
RESHE  WEZAEMNIERE S8
EHIBWE=ZFARIFITZEE - K=
TZ-XRFZA=Z1+—8 " IEERKEE
EmBAE —_E—"F=-A=+—H0&K
TEBNEA(ZZE—RHF : THBBNE
A) -

19. EERDAFEFABREZE
BMEE

2016 2015

—B-A%F | T 0%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Structured deposits ERETER 36,063 37,935
Unlisted investment funds FELEMIREES 10,819 -
46,882 37,935

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had short term investments linked
structured deposits that were denominated in RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to HK$36,063,000) (2015: RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$37,935,000)) with a bank with maturity periods of 39 days (2015:
50 days) and unlisted investment funds that were denominated in
RMB9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$10,819,000) with a bank (2015: Nil).

Interest rates of the structured deposits vary depending on the return
rate of the relevant short term bonds, money market investment fund
and bank deposits.

Structured deposits are carried at fair value determined according to
the inputs other than quoted market prices (note 29.3).

Unlisted investment funds are carried at fair value and their dealing
price is derived from net asset values of the investment funds with
reference to observable quoted price of underlying investment
portfolio in active markets (note 29.3).

R-ZE—RFE=ZA=+—H XEBH
BRI G E R EB T
3} & ¥ AR 30,000,000 (HHE R
36,063,000/ L) (ZE—FHF : AR
& 30,000,000 7T ( #8 & # 37,935,000 %
JC))BIR39R(=Z—HaF : 50H) W&
W ABRIELETIREES AR
9,000,000 7t (48 & 5 10,819,000 % 7T )
(ZE—RF )

RRBMEFRZHNEETREEHES
EETHREESRRITER Zz@MHX

EBUEETIRRBMRTE AN ZBA
BIEEE 2 2 EFIR(FIEE29.3) -

FLEMRERESRAFEIR - MEM
MR HETI2EREEMSNHEBIRE
HEMABRBRERREEZS CEER
EfFH (K13E29.3)
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20. RERREEEY

2016 2015
—B-X"F | T 1%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE T FET

Cash at banks and in hand RITEGRERS 149,754 133,046

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$91,073,000 (2015: HK$41,278,000) which were
denominated in Renminbi. The remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R-ZE—XRNEZA=+—H &%
EUARBAEBEZROTEGELES
#591,073,0008 L (=T —HF :
41,278,000/7T) - I BEBE & L H
BXHPBBFMER INEE RS -

21. ESZREMEARKIA

2016 2015
—B-A"F | 2T 0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities mEBAE

Trade payables JERTE SRR 227,006 240,155
Other payables and accruals Hip e N sB R ERTE R 35,670 16,714
Sales deposits received BlEERS 3,710 1,631
266,386 258,500

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables Hofth & - FRIE - 53,512

At 31 March 2016, all trade and other payables are short term and
hence the carrying values of the Group's trade and other payables are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. At 31 March
2015, the long-term payables were mainly cash advances from third
parties, which are unsecured, interest free and not payable within one
year. Other than the long-term payables, all amounts are short term
and hence the carrying values of the Group’s trade and other payables
are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on invoice

21. EFREMEMNTRIE®)
AREBEMNE SRR EEH B Z R

date is as follows: ST
2016 2015
“E-RE | _E—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
0-30 days 0-30H 38,990 23,797
31-60 days 31-60H 203 15,926
61-90 days 61-90H 16,444 12,356
91-180 days 91-180H 32,408 58,073
181-365 days 181-365H 85,516 69,133
Over 365 days HBi@365H 53,445 60,870
227,006 240,155
22 . SHARE CAPITAL 22. R
Authorised Ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each
EREE0I10B T2
EESBER
Number of shares

(in thousands) HK$°000
BAEE (FR) FExT

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=A=1+—HK
—E-RE=ZA=1+—H 2,000,000 200,000
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

22. BAS ()

Issued and fully paid Ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each
SREEI0ETZ
ERTRAZEER
Number of shares
(in thousands) HK$'000
ROBE (TR) THERT

As at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—hHEF
F

1,356,250 135,625

30,000,000 warrants issued on 4 June 2012 and 60,000,000 warrants
issued on 26 July 2012 have initial subscription prices of HK$0.185
per share and HK$0.141 per share respectively for one ordinary share
of the Company exercisable for a period of five years. As at 31 March
2016, 90,000,000 (2015: 90,000,000) warrants remained unexercised.

23. SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual general meeting
of the Company held on 1 August 2011 (“Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted the new share option scheme (“New Scheme”)
on the Adoption Date. The major terms of the New Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(@)  The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

(b)  The participants included any employee or consultant, advisor,
agent, contractor, client or supplier of the Company or any
subsidiary who in the sole opinion of the board of directors
have contributed or are expected to contribute to the Group
(“Participant”).
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregated exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The initial total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the New Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted
under the scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issued
at the day on which the New Scheme is approved and such limit
might be refreshed by shareholders in general meeting.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to
each Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (the
“Individual Limit"”). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant shall be subject to the issue of a
circular to the shareholders and the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company with such Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

Unless the directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to achieve any performance targets before any options
granted under the New Scheme can be exercised.

23.

(c)

(e)
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23. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 23.

(g0 An offer of the grant of the option may be accepted by a (g)
Participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the option. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

(h)  The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme will be  (h)
a price determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
higher of:

° the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a business day;

o the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

° the nominal value of the shares.

() The New Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years (i)
commencing on the date on which the New Scheme is adopted.

IR
ZEATERBEHBREZLN A
EEF28 AWML BRIESY) -
BEWERT 2 EBRERESMNE
TTZRBANRE -

FEEE TR 2AREESBHES
ETE  WTAEERTISEZ&ES
e

e BIREHBHBRH(LASR
LEH)EBRZAEARESR
PRITHE

o BOHMNERRLZHRHAA
B % B EBRAE A RER
FIRFERTHE « &

e KRiPEE-

#at8lis B Fat S ERAE B R
T10FABRER

No share options were granted by the Company or outstanding atany HZ—Z— "F=A=+—HItFERK
time during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). ERCIESIET IIPNNCIE S s S e R <R R G
RITEERE(ZE—RF : |) o
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24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24. &2 BB RRE

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RE | ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RS 128 172
Investments in subsidiaries RIEBAE 2 %E 76,998 75,202
71,126 75,374
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TBARIE - e kEARUGRIE 124 193
Cash and cash equivalents RENBeEEY 35,124 41,408
35,248 41,601
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HtERIE R ERTE A 344 592
Net current assets REEEFE 34,904 41,009
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 112,030 116,383
Net assets BEEFE 112,030 116,383
Equity e
Equity attributable to the owners of ERABRBEEARLESR
the Company
Share capital AR 135,625 135,625
Reserves (Note) f s (BT (23,595) (19,242)
Total equity FERHEEE 112,030 116,383

Yau Hoi Kin
Director

5%

Wang Xiaoqi
B30
Director

5%
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24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY(Continued)

Note:

The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

24, KD FBEMRRE @)

B
ARARZREEBHNT

Share premium

Warrant reserve Accumulated losses Total reserves

RRE RREERE 2T EE BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FHET FET
Asat 1 April 2014 RZZT—NEMA—A 101,852 900 (120,839) (18,087)
Comprehensive expense 2HEMAX
Loss for the year FEREIE - - (1,155) (1,155)
Total comprehensive expense for the year G N2 [ 5 L 408 - - (1,155) (1,155)
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RF=ZA=+—Ak
—ZT-n¥mMA—H 101,852 900 (121,994) (19,242)
Comprehensive expense 2HEMAX
Loss for the year FREE = = (4,353) (4.353)
Total comprehensive expense for the year — F /A2 [ FI 7 4258 - - (4,353) (4,353)
As at 31 March 2016 R-B-RF=ZA=+-—8H 101,852 900 (126,347) (23,595)
25. RESERVES 25. &
(a) Share premium (a) MRBRE

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds from
issuance of the Company's shares over its par value.

(b) Warrant reserve
Warrant reserve represents the unexercised equity element of
warrants issued by the Company.

(c) Translation reserve

The translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.

(d) Distributable reserve

As at 31 March 2016, in the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
reserve available for distribution to owners amounted to approximately
HK$101,852,000 (2015: HK$101,852,000).

26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax liabilities:

No deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have material
temporary difference arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

112 YUNBO DIGITAL SYNERGY GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B0 4t (B 45 1T A R B P 18 3R IR %
BBEAHREERD

(b) RREZREE
R R FERIEA DR EITZRIEE
ZARITIEREZEEB D ©

(c) HirfFEE

AEEZz L RREREBBREREBINESLZ
VHRRFTEEMEEL =R - FiHR
MIsE2 ARTE 2 AT BURE R o

(d) "o EfEE
R-BE—REFE=ZA=+—0 EER
B AR ZADRTHEBAZERB
#/4101,852,0008 L (=T — A& :
101,852,000 7T ) °

26. EIEFTBH

EIL AT B
ARAEEN - E—RER-_E—HEF
A=t HzEERABZHERE
EEEY B EEESAEHEE B
I R A B TS SRR MR RIRFE T 13
HafE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B A W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B2 —Z— ~"F=A=+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX(continued)

Deferred income tax assets:

No deferred income tax assets have not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of tax losses available
to offset future profits due to the uncertainty of future profit streams
against which the asset can be utilised. At the reporting dates, the

26. EIEMBR (@)
EIEFTBHREE -

R RAEET A B A& E 2 K Ka F) 2K
TR B B R A B S RER P LAl A
TER S AR 2w A 2 TRIB S 18 | R
FIEMEE - RIREBH  AEBZK

unrecognised tax losses of the Group are as follows: R IEEENT -
2016 2015
—B-X"F | T 1%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT | TR
Tax losses MIEE 8 59,401 43,600
27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHEHAIE
As lessee ERABEAN

At the reporting dates, the total future minimum lease payments
payable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises and equipment are as follows:

RBERH  AEEREBEBERYE
REBZ A BEHE XM E 2 BIREN
ZEEHESEENT

2016 2015

X | ZFT—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERx FHET

Within one year —FR 1,778 3,588
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEFHFN(BEEEMSF) 989 2,897
2,767 6,485

The Group leases a number of premises and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at
the expiry date.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, an online platform lease
agreement has been terminated by mutual agreement with no penalty
imposed.

AEERBEEXHEHAAHEDE LR
e MONFR/Y—E0%F  REWA
iR R EEEEOREHMEAES -

HE_ZT—RAF=A=1+—HItFE -
EFTRBERIWML-FAHERHE BE
BEHIAEIR o

EREXEEERAF | ZT—AFERS
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in note 31, during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015, the Group has not entered into significant transactions
with related parties.

No transactions have been entered with the directors of the Company
(being the key management personnel) during the year other than
the emoluments paid to them (being the key management personnel
compensation) as disclosed in note 12.1.

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

29.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position relate to the following categories of financial assets
and financial liabilities:

28. BERRS
BEENBEEZIN  BE_T—AF
FZE—RAF=A=+—HILFE K
EEMERBBTITVEARS -

AN E 121 RBEARRRRESEX
e (BXT2EEEAEME)I  ©
FAMBEARNRER(NETZEEEA
B#ITRS

29. BikEREER AFEFE

AEBERGASEYZEYHER : @
Bk (BIEINER R - AR E R R ER
k) - EERBRERBIERERE - AEH
ZEEBRREEFIDERNEBT S
Z AN AT TER AN = SR PR S AR R B B S R
BS R BETNEE -

291 EREBEEREEZER
REREMBERAKREN ZREEE T
TREEMSREEERAR -

2016 2015
—B-XRE | ZT—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables B REN
— Trade and other receivables — 85 KEMmEIIE 159,173 241,832
— Cash and bank balances — IR & KIRITHE SR 149,754 133,046
308,927 374,878
Financial assets designated BERAFESABRZZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREE
— Structured deposits — BTN 36,063 37,935
— Unlisted investment funds —JELEMREES 10,819 -
46,882 37,935
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29. (i EREER ATEHE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
29.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities (Continued) 291 sRIEEREBEZENE)
2016 2015
ZB-RF | ZT-1F
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
Financial liabilities - =R i
Financial liabilities measured BB KA EZ
at amortised cost ZHEE
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMERNRIE 262,676 310,381

29.2 Financial risk factors

Exposure to market risk (including foreign exchange, interest rate and
price risks), credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course
of business. The risks are minimised by the financial management
policies and practices described below:

29.2.1 Market Risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

The management of the Group considers the foreign exchange risk of
the Group is not significant, and thus does not have any active policies
to hedge against the foreign exchange risk.

(i) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to significant price risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group has significant exposure to interest rate risk
as the Group currently has certain financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss exposed to floating interest rates.

EREXEEERAF | ZT—AFERS

29.2 R EE
—MREBKBEPEEETSRER(BEIN
- FMEREZRRE) EERRRTE
BEeRk o Tl %EREBR REEA
R 2 AR K

29.2.1 HHEE

0 SMEmSR

AN BB = 2R B B AN E TS B AR 2R B
%75  DHRABERBERFHE -

AEBEEERR  AKEZIMNERR
AR B I A (R RS AR R DA S S
PEE 22

(i) 1B ELRE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

29.2.1 Market Risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's interest rate risk exposure is summarised as follows:

29 BIRABREERAFEITE
rga)

29.2 BiEAREE (&)

29.2.1 R E)

(i) FIREf (48)

AEBMFRRERBMIT

2016 2015
“E-NRE | _E—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Financial assets designated at fair value EERRATFEFABRZ
through profit or loss THMEE
— Structured deposits —HEEMTER 36,063 37,935
At 31 March 2016, if market interest rates at that date had been WR-ZT—XE=ZA=+—H M Elﬁ
25 basis points (2015: 25 basis points) higher/lower with all other 355 & & 41 5 D25 EH B ( —ZF —

variables held constant, profit after tax for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$68,000 (2015: increase/decrease by HK$71,000)
and other comprehensive income would decrease/increase by HK$nil
(2015: decrease/increase by HK$nil).

In the opinion of the management the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

29.2.2 Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bill, trade and other

receivables, financial assets designated at fair value through profit or

loss and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise credit risk, management has delegated a team to
be responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual bill, trade and other receivables
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised
for irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's bill receivables with carrying amount
of HK$2,143,000 (2015: HK$55,605,000) are unconditional orders in
writing issued by or negotiated from banks or customers of the Group
which entitle the Group to collect a sum of money from banks or other
parties.

The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the Group's time
deposits and bank balances are deposited with banks of high credit
ratings in Hong Kong and the PRC.

EREXEEERAF | ZT—AFERS
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HRE T REBTEEMERAEEM
BEEMEASEARNEEERR
Ty iR B R IR R Pt B 25 FR AR FE R
MM B ERREE

AREEREEERR  EEECRE—
XBh BEEEEERE  FEHZ
REMEREF  BREDNRETHL
WEBBETR - i ERESTEHR
B ERI R ERE - B 5 M HE MBI
B2 AW EERE - AR EEWEE
BHER R SIBIER R °

RZEBE—RNE=ZA=+—8 AEEE
WEE(BRMEE /21430008 L (=
— A% : 55,605,000/870)) HERTT A
ERCEPELIAEEARITRES
BENEKEEEER  UETFAEE
TEFMERT T E A 5 U ER —ZE RRIH -

RBEENEERRAR AAKEZ

EEERRBTRREREE R EA
B ET R -

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B0 W B R Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2016 E T — A F=—A=+—HItFE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

29.2.3 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash

and marketable securities. The Group regularly reviews its major

funding positions to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in

meeting its financial obligations.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

29. iKEBEERANFEFE
(&)

29.2 MR EEE)

29.2.3 mEELERE
RECRBDECRRER  ERERSR

EZHRERBERES AEETHEN

HIXZEeMN BREERCVBE

BARMEBITEVBEETCFE -

TR AREZERMABSOFEH -

SZRIBEARERAKEZREES R
BEMNRFERHNESREBERATRR
TRERH - ZRBENELAERSE

JZx
/1L

o

Hfﬂllﬂ

Total Carrying

Less than 6 months to undiscounted  amount at

3 months  3-6 months 1year 1-2years  cash flow 31 March

R=A

~EA KR =+—AH=

PR=@A =Zx@EA 2—F —E-F BReRBHE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FTHET THET THET FHET THET
2016 —XE
Non-derivative FEiTE SR

financial liabilities =L

Trade and other E5RHEAM

payables ERRIE 75,487 32,407 154,782 - 262,676 262,676
2015 —T—hF
Non-derivative EOTE SR

financial liabilities BE

Trade and other payables 2 5 &% E.fth

JETFOE 20,218 236,651 - 53,512 310,381 310,381

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any derivative financial RZZZE—RXF=A=+—H  XEEL
liabilities (2015: Nil). BEEATESREE(ZT—0F &) -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.3 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability
of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset
or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

29. XEBEERAFEFE
(%)

293 BRATEHECLREEREE
TREJNREQATFEERS - UATES
ANEAVBRARZEMEERAE -
HEBEBH NS SREEREE/Y
ATPERERZ TBHASE 2 ABE T
£ BLREEREGBESAZE -
NTEEESBATEE :

FE: HREERABEREEMSZ
HECRERE)

F2fE . BEEXBEMER(BER)
kR (B EAREE ) B
ZHABBR(TBREE1EME
BZWE) R

FIE : WIHREAIBEIMBEEM
BhZEELREH ARE
(EEBREBA) -

TRHEEXRBEERBMERAZAFE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.3 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the

consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the fair

value hierarchy as follows:

29. IEAREERAFETE
(#&)

293 RATEFAEZEMEERAE
(1)

KRB BRRAERANRAFEFEZE

MEENBEDEDRATZAFER

&

Level 2
H2E
2016 2015
—E-RF | ZE—1F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Assets BE
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit BEERAVET ARG EREE !
or loss:
— Structured deposits —HEEMTFR 36,063 37,935
— Unlisted investment funds —FEFTREES 10,819 -
46,882 37,935

The structured deposits is not publicly traded, the fair values presented
are determined by calculating the present value of the estimated cash
flows upon maturity of these financial assets. Future cash flows are
estimated based on the contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of the Group or the counterparties, as
appropriate. Interest rates of the structured deposits vary depending
on the return rate of the relevant short term bonds, money market
investment fund and bank deposits.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

29.3 Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Dealing price of unlisted investment funds is derived from net asset

values of the investment funds with reference to observable quoted

price of underlying investment portfolio in active markets.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2, and 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

29.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments carried at amortised

cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March

2016 and 2015.

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for equity holders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to
equity holders, issue new shares or reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as a percentage of bank borrowings and long-term debts
over total equity. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was not
presented as the Group has no bank borrowing and long-term debts.

29. IEAREERAFETE
(#&)

293 RATEFEZEMEERAE
(#&)

FLETERERS R BB ERNAR

MIZMRRKREASN A BERERK

BES 7 BEFEBH -

BE-_ZT-XR"HEk-ZFT—0%F=A
=t—BLEFEE F1E F2BNFEIE
Z EIB R -

294 RAFEUNFRIIEZERMEE
REEZAFE

R RER-_ZE—RE=A=1+—

A AEEZREHEXAVEz2EMTA

FREEEEAFETEERESR -
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31. ACQUISITION OF CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT
TECHNOLOGY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(“CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT"”) (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MAGIC HOUR HOLDINGS LTD.)

On 20 August 2014, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an agreement with the vendor, Mr. Chan Foo
Wing who controls Happy On, to acquire 100% equity interest in
China Mobile Payment and its subsidiaries (“China Mobile Payment
Group”) for a cash consideration of HK$3,000,000. The acquisition
was completed on 23 December 2014. The principal business of
China Mobile Payment Group include research and development
of computer software auxiliary equipment, broadband network
equipment, communications transmission equipment, multimedia
communications systems; production of computer software, system
integration, sale of the self-manufactured products and provision of
technical consulting services.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$2.7 million have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and other
receivables) in these transactions with a fair value of HK$170.8 million

had gross contractual amounts of HK$170.8 million. At acquisition
date, no contractual cash flows were expected to be not collectable.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method.
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31. ACQUISITION OF CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT
TECHNOLOGY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(“CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT”) (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MAGIC HOUR HOLDINGS LTD.)
(Continued)

The net assets acquired and goodwill arising on the acquisition date

are as follows:

31. WEFBXANEEERR
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Carrying

amounts and

fair values

REERATE

HK$'000

FHT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 87,814

Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWEIR 170,797

Inventories 78 73,409

Property, plant and equipment, net M - BEREEEE 2,872

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERFIR (314,954)

Tax payable JERTHLIE (509)

Net assets acquired Friiig c EEFE 19,429

Non-controlling interests FEIER R (19,981)

Goodwill arising on acquisition AU mES 7 2 3,552

Total consideration BRE 3,000

Total consideration satisfied by: SHERE -

Cash paid on acquisition BEBESEESZN RS 3,000
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEBRELAZREREFE

Cash paid on acquisition HUESEZ N 2R (3,000)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FiliE 2R & KRS EEY 87,814

84,814

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of China Mobile Payment Group as
the cost of the acquisition included a control premium. In addition, the
consideration paid for the acquisition effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
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31. ACQUISITION OF CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT
TECHNOLOGY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(“CHINA MOBILE PAYMENT"”) (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MAGIC HOUR HOLDINGS LTD.)
(Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes.

In the event that actual profit of China Mobile Payment Group for the
year ended 31 March 2015 exceeds the guaranteed profit of HK$3
million, no adjustment shall be made to the consideration. In the
event that the actual profit falls short of the guaranteed profit, the
vendor shall pay the Company an amount equivalent to the difference
between the guarantee profit and the actual profit. At the acquisition
date and as at 31 March 2015, the management of the Company
estimates that fair value of the contingent consideration receivables
was approximately Nil as China Mobile Payment Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 March 2015 met the guaranteed profit amount.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31 March 2015, China
Mobile Payment Group has contributed a total revenue of HK$94.6
million and a net profit of HK$1.3 million.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2014, the consolidated
revenue and net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
would have been HK$354.1 million and HK$1.9 million respectively.
The proforma financial information is for illustrative purpose only and
does not necessarily reflect the Group's revenue and operating results
if the acquisition has been completed on 1 April 2014 and could not
serve as a basis for the forecast of future operation result.
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